
MH Commission Packet February 28, 2019 
 

Office:  3282 Adeline Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 • bamhc@cityofberkeley.info 
(510) 981-7644 • (510) 596-9299 FAX 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Health, Housing & Community Services 
Mental Health Commission 

 

To:   Mental Health Commissioners 
From:  Karen Klatt, Commission Secretary 
Date:   February 19, 2019 
 

Documents Pertaining to 02/28/19 Agenda items: 
 
Agenda Item Description 

 
Page 

 
2. A.   

 
Approval of February 28, 2019 Meeting Agenda 

 
1 

 
2. C.  

 
Approval of January 24, 2019 Meeting Minutes 

 
3 

 
5. 

 
Mental Health Manager Update 

 

  January Mental Health Manager Report 
 BMH Caseload Statistics for November 2018 

 February Mental Health Manager Report 

 City of Berkeley Homeless Outreach and Treatment Team (HOTT) 
Evaluation 

 December Mental Health Equity Committee Meeting Minutes 

 BMH Caseload Statistics for January 2019 

 BMH Homeless Count at Intake: Open Clients FY17/18 

 Resolution for Contract: B-Bros Construction, Inc. For the City of 
Berkeley’s Adult Mental Health Services center Renovations Project 

 BMH Cost Report 
 

6 
8 

11 
13 
 

36 
38 
41 
42 
 

43 

 
6.  

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Subcommittee Reports 

 

  Mental Health Commission 2/2019 Subcommittee Update Chart 
 Position Paper on: Police Use of Restraint Devices – Spit Hoods 

to Respond to People Experiencing Mental Illness and/or  
Substance Use Disorder Crises 

 Accountability Subcommittee Meeting Materials 
 Mental Health Commission Recruitment One Pager 

 

56 
57 
 
 

60 
89 
 

Email  
Correspondence 

Description  

  Statement for Submission to Next MH Commission Meeting: BMH’s 
role in Child Endangerment Case 

 Proposal for Review: Potential Agenda Item 
 

90 
 

103 

 

mailto:bamhc@cityofberkeley.info


Health, Housing & 
Community Services Department 
Mental Health Commission 

Berkeley/Albany Mental Health Commission 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, February 28, 2019 

Time:  7:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. 1947 Center Street 
 Basement, Multi-Purpose Room 

AGENDA 

All Agenda Items are for Discussion and Possible Action 

Public Comment Policy: Members of the public may speak on any items on the Agenda and items not 
on the Agenda during the initial Public Comment period. Members of the public may also comment on 
any item listed on the agenda as the item is taken up. Members of the public may not speak more than 
once on any given item. The Chair may limit public comment to 3 minutes or less. 

7:00 pm 1. Roll Call

2. PRELIMINARY MATTERS
A. Action Item:  Agenda Approval
B. Public Comment
C. Action Item: Approval of the January 24, 2019 Minutes

3. Lifelong Presentation – Brenda Goldstein

4. Discussion and Action on the nomination and election of the Mental
Health Commission Chair and Vice Chair

5. Mental Health Manager Updates for January and February –
Steve Grolnic-McClurg

6. Discussion and Possible Action on Subcommittee Reports
-Site Visit Subcommittee
-Diversity Subcommittee
-Accountability Subcommittee
-Membership Subcommittee

7. Discussion and Possible Action on Mental Health Commission Annual
Report

8. Role of Commission in Items related to BMH which appear on City
Council agenda

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 
Office:  3282 Adeline St • Berkeley, CA 94703 • (510) 981-7644 

(510) 596-9299 FAX • bamhc@cityofberkeley.info1

mailto:bamhc@cityofberkeley.info


9. Berkeley Mental Health Staff Announcements/Update

10. Prioritize Agenda Items for March Meeting

11. Announcements

9:00pm   12. Adjournment

Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of 
the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: Email 
addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in 
any communication to a City board, commission or committee, will become part of the public 
record. If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you 
may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, 
commission or committee. If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please 
do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, 
commission or committee for further information. The Health, Housing and Community Services 
Department does not take a position as to the content. 

Contact person: Karen Klatt, Mental Health Commission Secretary at 981-7644 or 
kklatt@ci.berkeley.ca.us. 

    Communication Access Information: This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible 
location. To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including 
auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 
(TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date. Please refrain from wearing scented 
products to this meeting. Attendees at trainings are reminded that other attendees may be 
sensitive to various scents, whether natural or manufactured, in products and materials. Please 
help the City respect these needs. Thank you. 

SB 343 Disclaimer 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available for public inspection in the SB 343 Communications Binder located at the Family, 
Youth and Children’s Clinic at 3282 Adeline St, Berkeley. 

3282 Adeline St.• Berkeley, CA 94703 • (510) 981-7644 • (510) 596-9299 FAX 
bamhc@cityofberkeley.info 

2

mailto:kklatt@ci.berkeley.ca.us
mailto:bamhc@cityofberkeley.info


Department of Health, 
Housing & Community Services 
Mental Health Commission 

Berkeley/Albany Mental Health Commission 
Unadopted Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
1947 Center Street     January 24, 2019 
7:00pm    
 Basement, Multi-Purpose Room 

Members of the Public Present:  Paul Kealoha-Blake, Clara Rodas. 
Staff Present:  Steve Grolnic-McClurg, Karen Klatt, Conor Murphy, Leah Talley. 

1. Call to Order at 7:18pm
Commissioners Present: boona cheema, Cheryl Davila, Margaret Fine, Shirley Posey.
Commissioners Absent: Erlinda Castro, Shelby Heda (arrived 7:32pm), Ben Ludke.

2. Preliminary Matters
A. Approval of the January 24, 2019 Agenda

M/S/C (Davila, Fine) Approve the January 24, 2019 Mental Health
Commission Meeting Agenda – PASSED
Ayes: cheema, Davila, Fine, Posey; Noes: None; Abstentions: None;
Absent: Castro, Heda (arrived 7:32pm), Ludke.

B. Public Comment – The members of the Public introduced themselves.

C. Approval of the December 13, 2018 Meeting minutes
M/S/C (Fine, Posey) Approve the December 13, 2018 Meeting minutes
- PASSED
M/S/C (Davila, Fine) Approve the January 24, 2019 Mental Health
Commission Meeting Agenda – PASSED
Ayes: cheema, Davila, Fine, Posey; Noes: None; Abstentions: None;
Absent: Castro, Heda (arrived 7:32pm), Ludke.

3. Berkeley Mental Health Fiscal Presentation – Steve Grolnic-McClurg and
Leah Talley – No action taken.

4. Discussion and Possible Action on Subcommittee Reports – No action taken.
-Site Visit Subcommittee
-Diversity Subcommittee
-Accountability Subcommittee

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 

3282 Adeline Street, Berkeley, CA  94703 Tel: 510.981-7644 Fax: 510.596-9299 TDD: 510.981-6903 

3



5. Discussion and Possible Motion on a Resolution on Berkeley Police
Department’s use of Spithoods

M/S/C (Davila, Fine) Refer to the Accountability Subcommittee the Spithood
Resolution, and questions we may want to ask the City of Berkeley Police
Department on Mental Health and Substance use – PASSED
Ayes: cheema, Davila, Fine, Heda, Posey; Noes: None; Abstentions: None;
Absent: Castro, Ludke.

6. Motion to re-nominate Paul Kealoha-Blake to the Mental Health Commission

M/S/C (Posey, Davila) Motion to re-nominate Paul Kealoha-Blake to the Mental
Health Commission in a Berkeley General Public Interest Seat – PASSED
Ayes: cheema, Davila, Fine, Heda, Posey; Noes: None; Abstentions: None;
Absent: Castro, Ludke.

*At this point it was 8:53pm and a motion was made to extend the meeting.

 M/S/C (Heda, Davila) Motion to extend the meeting to 9:15pm – PASSED 
 Ayes: cheema, Davila, Fine, Heda, Posey; Noes: None; Abstentions: None; 
 Absent: Castro, Ludke.  

7. Discussion and Possible Action on correspondence received and attached to
the MH Commission packet entitled: “Attention Mental Health Commission” –
Mental Health Manager Steve Grolnic-McClurg will forward the email to the
Manager of the Housing & Community Services Division.

8. Discussion and Possible Action on Mental Health Commission Annual
Report – Moved to February Agenda.

9. Discussion and Possible Action on the Mental Health Commission Chair
and Vice Chair elections, of which will be held during the February 28,
Commission Meeting – No action taken.

10. Discussion and Possible Action on the City of Berkeley’s Draft Local Hazard
Mitigation Plan – No action taken.

11. Discussion and Possible action on “May is Mental Health Month”, planning for
community gathering hosted by the Mental Health Commission – No action taken.

12. Berkeley Mental Health Staff Announcements/Updates – No action taken.
Commission Secretary, Karen Klatt distributed the current Mental Health
Commission membership chart.

13. Berkeley Mental Health Manager Update – This item was moved to the February
meeting agenda.

14. Prioritize Agenda Items for January Meeting – Mental Health Manager Updates.

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 

3282 Adeline Street, Berkeley, CA  94703 Tel: 510.981-7644 Fax: 510.596-9299 TDD: 510.981-6903 

4



15. Announcements – None.

16. Adjournment – 9:15pm

Minutes submitted by: 
Karen Klatt, Commission Secretary 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 

3282 Adeline Street, Berkeley, CA  94703 Tel: 510.981-7644 Fax: 510.596-9299 TDD: 510.981-6903

5



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Mental Health Commission  
From:  Steven Grolnic-McClurg, Mental Health Manager  
Date:  January 14, 2019 
Subject: Mental Health Manager Report 
 

 

Adult Triage Grant 
The Mental Health Division has released an RFP for the evaluation services for the 
Adult Triage Grant, and has approved requisitions for the two staff positions funded 
through the grant.  The division is working through the logistics of incorporating the 
crisis line into the existing programming. 

 
The Mental Health Division currently operates a Community Assessment and Triage 
(CAT) team at 1521 University Avenue at the Adult Mental Health Clinic.  Community 
members can contact the CAT team for screening, assessment, and referral to the 
appropriate level of mental health treatment by either walking into the clinic at 1521 
University Avenue between 8 am and 1:30 pm Monday –Thursday or calling the CAT 
phone line 981-5244 between the hours of 8 am and 4 pm. The funding will support the 
mental health division in expanding the staffing for the CAT phone line for up to three 
years.   

 
With the additional funding, this phone line will be available for individuals who are in a 
mental health crisis to call in order to reach a mental health clinician.  The exact hours 
the new “crisis” services on this phone will be available and the starting date of the new 
program are not yet set – we anticipate getting the new program up and going in March 
and will be publicizing this when we have clear hours and a date to start operations. 

 
Residents of Berkeley who are having a mental health crisis can currently call Crisis 
Support Services of Alameda County 24 hours a day at 1-800-309-2131 to talk with a 
trained crisis counselor.  Residents of Berkeley can also call the Berkeley Police 
Department (BPD) Non-Emergency number 24 hours a day at 981-5900 to request a 
MCT evaluation or call 911 if they or a loved one are in a life threatening mental health 
crisis.  This grant funding will allow the Mental Health Division to create another option 
for individuals who are in crisis to reach help. 
 

 

 

6

mailto:housing@ci.berkeley.ca.us
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/housing/


Children’s Triage Grant 

The Mental Health Division is asking City Council for approval to a children’s triage 

grant from the MHOAC for $216,098 on 1/29/19.  After getting City Council approval 

and entering into a contract with MHOAC, this funding will allow the division to add a 

dedicated crisis clinician at Berkeley High School for the academic year 19-20.  Having 

a dedicated crisis clinician will improve crisis services at the high school and free up 

other staffing to spend more time doing treatment and referral. 

 

Health Equity 

The Health Equity Committee met in December.  The group looked at updated 

demographic data connected to enrollment, medi-cal rates, and closed clients.  The 

data showed that the percentage of African-American clients increased from 34% in 

FY17 to 37% in FY18.  The committee hypothesized that the increase in African 

American open clients might correspond to increased focus on the homeless population 

in Berkeley, which, according to the 2017 Point In Time Count, was 50% African-

American.  While the distribution of closed clients very closely matched the open client 

distribution, the committee recommended that the division do additional quality 

assurance to ensure that the reason selected for discharge was uniformly being 

determined by clinicians.  The mental health division has subsequently implemented a 

new process to ensure this occurs. 

 

 

Wellness Center 

The Mental Health Division will ask City Council on 1/29/19 to authorize the transfer of 

$750,000 for construction costs at Alameda County Behavioral Health Care Services 

(ACBHCS) for the proposed Berkeley/Albany Wellness Center.  ACBHCS is also slated 

to get Board of Supervisor approval for the proposed contract and for $750,000 in 

ACBHCS construction expenses for the Wellness Center.   

 

Adult Clinic at 2640 Reconstruction  

Public Works has completed the RFP for a vendor to complete the construction work at 

2640 MLK – the old Adult Clinic.  The selected vendor’s bid was under the most recent 

cost estimate, and Public Works will be requesting authority from City Council to enter 

into a contract with that vendor at the 1/29/19 City Council meeting.   

 

 

7



B
e

rke
le

y M
e

n
tal H

e
alth

 C
aselo

ad
 Statistics fo

r 

N
o

ve
m

b
er 2

0
1

8
 

A
d

u
lt Se

rvice
s 

In
te

n
d

ed
 R

atio
 o

f 
staff to

 clie
n

ts 
C

lin
ical Staff 

P
o

sitio
n

s Fille
d

 
# o

f clie
n

ts 
M

o
n

th
ly C

o
st 

P
e

r 
P

articip
an

t 
P

e
r B

u
d

ge
t* 

Fiscal Y
ear 20

1
9

 
D

e
m

o
grap

h
ics as o

f Jan
u

ary, 
2

01
9

 – D
ata In

co
m

p
lete

 P
er 

Y
e

llo
w

Fin
 

A
d

u
lt, O

ld
e

r A
d

u
lt an

d
 TA

Y
 Fu

ll 
Service

 P
artn

ersh
ip

 (FSP
) 

(H
igh

est le
vel o

u
tp

atie
n

t 
clin

ical case
 m

an
agem

e
n

t an
d

 
treatm

e
n

t) 

1
-1

0
 fo

r clin
ical

staff.
6

 C
lin

ician
s 

1
 Team

 Lead
 

6
9 

$
1

,7
67

 
7

1
 C

lien
ts 

A
m

e
rican

 In
d

ian
: 1

 
A

P
I: 3

 
A

frican
-A

m
e

rican
: 2

5
 

H
isp

an
ic: 4 

O
th

er: 23
 

W
h

ite
: 1

5
 

M
ale: 44

 
Fem

ale: 2
7 

A
d

u
lt FSP

 P
sych

iatry 
1

-1
0

0
.3

5
 FTE 

5
6 

$
51

5
 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

sive C
o

m
m

u
n

ity 
Tre

atm
e

n
t (C

C
T) 

(H
igh

 level o
u

tp
atie

n
t clin

ical 
case

 m
an

age
m

e
n

t an
d

 
treatm

e
n

t) 

1
-2

0
9

.5
 C

lin
ician

s 
.5

 Lead
 C

lin
ician

 
1

 N
o

n
-D

egreed
 

C
lin

ical 
1

 M
an

ager 

1
63

 
$

86
5

 
1

76
 C

lien
ts 

A
P

I: 9
 

A
frican

-A
m

e
rican

: 6
3

 
H

isp
an

ic: 7 
O

th
er: 46

 
W

h
ite

: 51
 

M
ale: 98

 
Fem

ale: 7
8 

C
C

T P
sych

iatry 
1

-2
0

0
1

.0 
1

27
 

$
31

9
 

Fo
cu

s o
n

 In
d

e
p

en
d

e
n

ce
 T

eam
 

(FIT) 
(Lo

w
e

r leve
l o

f care
, o

n
ly fo

r 
in

d
ivid

u
als p

revio
u

sly o
n

 FSP
 o

r 
C

C
T) 

1
-2

0
 Team

 Lead
,

1
-5

0
 P

o
st M

aste
rs

C
lin

ical
1

-3
0

 N
o

n
-D

egreed
C

lin
ical

1
 C

lin
ical 

Su
p

erviso
r, I 

Licen
sed

 
C

lin
ician

, 1
 C

H
W

 
Sp

./ N
o

n
-

D
egreed

 C
lin

ical 

9
8 

$
3

5
9

 
1

01
 C

lien
ts 

A
P

I: 3
 

A
frican

 A
m

erican
: 39

 
H

isp
an

ic: 3
 

O
th

er: 1
7

 
W

h
ite

: 39
 

M
ale: 62

 
Fem

ale: 3
8 

FIT
 P

sych
iatry 

1
-2

0
0

.5
 

8
7 

$
3

4
6

 

8



Fam
ily, Y

o
u

th
 an

d
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s 
Service

s 
In

te
n

d
ed

 R
atio

 o
f staff 

to
 clie

n
ts 

C
lin

ical 
Staff 
P

o
sitio

n
s 

Fille
d

 

# o
f clie

n
ts 

M
o

n
th

ly 
C

o
st P

er 
P

articip
an

t 
P

e
r 

B
u

d
ge

t* 

Fiscal Y
ear 20

1
9

 
D

e
m

o
grap

h
ics as o

f 
D

e
cem

b
er, 2

0
18

 – D
ata 

In
co

m
p

lete
 P

e
r Y

e
llo

w
Fin

 

C
h

ild
ren

’s Fu
ll Service

 
P

artn
e

rsh
ip

 
1

-8
2

.0
 C

lin
ical 

1
3 

$
2

,0
37

 
1

7
 C

lien
ts 

A
P

I: 1
 

A
frican

-A
m

e
rican

: 8
 

H
isp

an
ic: 2 

O
th

er: 2
 

W
h

ite
: 4

 
M

ale: 10
 

Fem
ale: 7 

Early an
d

 P
e

rio
d

ic Scre
e

n
in

g, 
D

iagn
o

stic an
d

 T
re

atm
en

t 
P

re
ven

tio
n

 (EP
SD

T) 
/Ed

u
catio

n
ally R

e
late

d
 M

en
tal 

H
ealth

 Se
rvices (ER

M
H

S) 

1
-2

0
2

.5
 C

lin
ical 

5
6 

$
87

9
 

6
1

 C
lien

ts 
A

P
I: 4

 
A

frican
-A

m
e

rican
: 2

2
 

H
isp

an
ic: 9 

O
th

er: 15
 

W
h

ite
: 11

 
M

ale: 41
 

Fem
ale: 2

0 

H
igh

 Sch
o

o
l H

e
alth

 C
e

n
te

r an
d

 
B

e
rkeley Te

ch
n

o
lo

gical 
A

cad
em

y 

1
-6

 C
lin

ician
 (m

ajo
rity o

f
tim

e sp
en

t o
n

 crisis
co

u
n

selin
g)

1
 C

lin
ical 

Lead
,1

.5
 

C
lin

ical, 5
 

In
te

rn
s 

Treatm
en

t: 7
0 

G
ro

u
p

s: 1
2 

o
ffered

, 9
 

co
n

d
u

cte
d

 
D

ro
p

 In
 (C

risis): 
5

3
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

C
risis, A

C
C

ESS, an
d

 H
o

m
eless 

Services 
Staff 
R

atio
n

 
C

lin
ical Staff 

P
o

sitio
n

s Filled
 

To
tal # o

f 
C

lien
ts/In

cid
en

ts 

H
o

m
eless O

u
treach

 an
d

 
Treatm

en
t Team

 (H
O

TT) 
1

-1
0

 C
ase

M
an

ager
1

-3
 Te

am
Lead

1
 Te

am
 Lead

 
2

 C
ase M

an
agers 

2
6

 en
ro

lled
 clien

ts fo
r 

th
e m

o
n

th
.   

9



4
4

 n
o

n
-en

ro
lle

d
 

in
d

ivid
u

als received
 

o
u

treach
. 

H
O

TT P
sych

iatry 
1

-1
0

0 
0

 
0

 

M
o

b
ile C

risis 
N

/A
 

3
 C

lin
ician

s,  
 

1
05

 In
cid

en
ts 

 
4

2
 5

15
0 Evals 

 
2

3
 5

15
0 Evals 

lead
in

g to
 

in
vo

lu
n

tary 
tran

sp
o

rt 
Tran

sitio
n

al O
u

tre
ach

 Team
 

(TO
T) 

N
/A

 
1

 C
lin

ician
, 1

 N
o

n
-

Licen
sed

 Staff 

6
2

 In
cid

en
ts 

 N
o

t reflected
 in

 ab
o

ve ch
art is Early C

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 C
o

n
su

ltatio
n

, A
C

C
ESS, W

elln
ess an

d
 R

e
co

very P
ro

gram
m

in
g, o

r Fam
ily Su

p
p

o
rt. 

*
M

o
n

th
ly C

o
st To

 B
e D

eterm
in

ed
 – B

u
d

get in
 n

ew
 fo

rm
at, re

q
u

ires ad
d

itio
n

al an
alysis to

 id
en

tify treatm
en

t team
 co

sts. 

 

10



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Mental Health Commission  
From:  Steven Grolnic-McClurg, Mental Health Manager  
Date:  February 19, 2019 
Subject: Mental Health Manager Report 
 

 

Homeless Outreach and Treatment Team 
The “City of Berkeley Homeless Outreach and Treatment Team (HOTT) Evaluation” 
was completed by Resource Development Associates.  This interim report, which 
includes quantitative and qualitative data about the HOTT, is included in the packet for 
the Mental Health Commission this month.  The report demonstrates the ways in which 
the HOTT has become a vital and integral part of the homeless system of care, and is a 
testament to the compassionate and relentless work done by the staff on the HOTT.   
 

 

Health Equity 

The Health Equity Committee met in January.  The group looked at information 

connected to the rate of homelessness at entry into Berkeley Mental Health and 

compared the demographics of the homeless population in Berkeley to the open client 

demographics.  As intended by the creation of the HOTT, the data shows that for FY 

17/18, 50% of the enrolled clients that year were homeless at intake.  The homeless 

population in Berkeley does somewhat match to the open client demographics at 

Berkeley Mental Health.  The data on clients opened in FY 17/18 also shows that for 

this fiscal year 48% of newly opened clients were female, while 52% were male.  This is 

a higher percentage of females than in previous fiscal years, and indicates that some of 

the measures implemented (asking folks if they would prefer to be screened by a 

woman, more outreach to the Women Day Time Drop In Center) may be working.  

While the minutes for the committee in January are not finalized, please find attached in 

the packet the data around homelessness and intakes that was presented as well as 

the finalized minutes for the group from December. 

 

 

Wellness Center 

11

mailto:housing@ci.berkeley.ca.us
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/housing/


The City Council authorized the transfer of $750,000 for construction costs at Alameda 

County Behavioral Health Care Services (ACBHCS) for the proposed Berkeley/Albany 

Wellness Center.  ACBHCS and the mental health division are working on the contract 

that will allow the actual transfer of these funds, so that construction work can begin in 

spring of this year. 

 

 

Adult Clinic at 2640 Reconstruction  

The City Council authorized a contract for the interior renovation and seismic upgrade of 

the Adult Mental Health Clinic at 2640 MLK.  The vendor selected is B-Bros 

Construction Inc., and the council item authorizes the City Manager to execute a 

contract in an amount not to exceed $4,886,293.  The renovation and upgrade work 

should begin in spring of this year as well. 

 

 

FY18 Cost Report 

As requested, please find enclosed in this month’s packet is the FY18 submitted cost 

report.  The City of Berkeley submits the cost report to ACBHCS, which in turn includes 

the cost report in their cost report submittal to the Department of Health Care Services.  

As mentioned in the fiscal presentation at the January MHC meeting, the cost report is 

the document utilized for final settlements on the earned revenue due to the mental 

health division from Medi-Cal services. 

 

 

12



City of Berkeley Homeless  Outreach 
and Treatment Team (HOTT) Evaluation  

Evaluation Report 

13



Table of Contents 
Table of Contents .......................................................................................................................................... 2 

Background ................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Berkeley HOTT Program ............................................................................................................................ 3 

Program Service Model ............................................................................................................................. 4 

Target Population ..................................................................................................................................... 5 

HOTT Program Staff .................................................................................................................................. 5 

Evaluation Methodology ............................................................................................................................... 6 

Evaluation Findings ....................................................................................................................................... 7 

Discussion.................................................................................................................................................... 19 

Recommendations .................................................................................................................................. 19 

Next Steps ............................................................................................................................................... 20 

Appendices .................................................................................................................................................. 21 

Appendix A. HOTT Program Evaluation Data Sources ............................................................................ 21 

Appendix B. Demographic Profile of HOTT Program Clients .................................................................. 22 

Appendix C. Self-Sufficiency Matrix Scores for HOTT Program Clients .................................................. 23 

 

 

 

 

  

14



Background 

The following section describes the City of Berkeley’s Homeless Outreach Treatment Team (HOTT) 

program history, service model, services provided, and the population they served during the evaluation 

period. 

Berkeley HOTT Program 

The City of Berkeley’s Homeless Outreach Treatment Team (HOTT) is a homeless outreach and 

engagement pilot program with the goal of engaging and connecting to homeless individuals currently 

living on the streets of Berkeley and Albany who have significant mental health needs to potential housing 

opportunities. This three-year pilot program is 60% funded by the City’s Mental Health Services Act 

(MHSA) resources [a combination of Community Services and Supports (CSS) and Prevention Early 

Intervention (PEI) funds], 30% from realignment funds, and 10% from the City of Berkeley’s General Fund. 

Given the diversification of program funds, HOTT has the ability to serve the chronically homeless 

population, while also providing services to individuals with severe and persistent mental illness (SPMI), 

services for individuals to prevent SPMI, and services to those with functional impairments due to a 

mental health disorder or high profile problematic behaviors on the streets. 

HOTT’s program was designed based on an evidence-based practice known as Critical Time Intervention 

(CTI). CTI provides short-term intervention services for people adjusting to a “critical time” of transition 

in their lives.1 It facilitates community integration and continuity of care by ensuring that a person has 

enduring ties to their community and support systems during a critical period of need.2 Rather than 

focusing on direct problem solving, the HOTT program focuses on building trusting relationships with 

participants to assist them with navigating the complex system between homelessness and long-term 

success.  

In 2017, the HOTT program faced a number of challenges during the first year of program implementation, 

including limited resources and environmental changes, which led to changes to the original HOTT 

program’s plans. Originally, the HOTT program was planned to have access to housing vouchers in the 

County system. However, housing vouchers were not available to the HOTT program, causing 

unanticipated challenges in the first year of implementation. Consequently, the HOTT program team had 

to think more broadly on how best to help homeless individuals outside of the County system. This 

situation contributed to a number of challenging circumstances, and the HOTT program staff adapted by 

being more flexible in their program implementation. In addition, it became apparent the initial list of 

agencies who can make referrals to the HOTT program excluded some important stakeholders, so the 

HOTT program expanded the referral sources to include any agencies as well as community stakeholders. 

Finally, the hiring and retention of a registered nurse proved challenging since the program had a higher 

demand for case management than nursing skills; thus, the program will be hiring an additional case 

manager instead of a nurse. In the context of limited resources and staffing shortages, the HOTT program 

1 Center for the Advancement of Critical Time Intervention, (2014). CTI Model. Retrieved fromhttps://www.criticaltime.org/cti-
model/ 
2 Ibid 

15



staff adapted by managing program resources and budget judiciously. Despite these challenges, the HOTT 

program staff have created an impactful and resilient program that effectively engages and helps 

homeless individuals in Berkeley and Albany.  

Program Service Model 

The HOTT program model is characterized by the development of strong trusting relationships with 

clients; as well as the program staff’s flexibility, resiliency, and commitment to adapting to emerging 

challenges while maintaining patient, respectful, and compassionate engagement with homeless 

individuals. The core value of the program is providing high quality human engagement that is centered 

on promoting dignity and community. 

The ultimate goal of the HOTT program is to provide support for the client to successfully navigate the 

challenges during the transition of being homeless. The HOTT program achieves this through outreach 

and engagement strategies tailored for each individual to: 1) engage individuals in services, 2) link 

individuals to services, and 3) promote self-sufficiency (Figure 1). 

Figure 1. HOTT Program Activities 

 

Engagement. Within the engagement phase, the HOTT team conducts outreach and engagement to 

homeless individuals living in the cities of Berkeley and Albany and refers them to appropriate services 

and partner agencies. The HOTT program manager and case managers work collaboratively to engage 

individuals and share information about HOTT services with the hope that an individual will agree to 

participate. The HOTT team also responds to calls from the city to assist with providing supportive services 

to individuals experiencing homelessness. In addition to the street and encampment outreach efforts to 

refer and enroll potential participants, the HOTT program has partnered with the Berkeley Food and 

Housing Project (HUB) − a non-profit organization that provides housing, food, and services − to refer 

Engagement

Partner agencies 
engage individual in 

HOTT team and 
services

Linkages to 
Services

Staff identify needs 
and services for 

individual 

Increase in Self-
Sufficency

HOTT client 
transitions from HOTT 
program to ongoing 

services 

16



individuals to HOTT’s program and connect them with housing resources. During the HUB’s intake process, 

clients are assessed to identify and prioritize housing for those experiencing chronic homelessness. The 

intended design was for HOTT to provide immediate short-term housing and wrap around services, while 

the HUB connects individuals to HUB services and provides permanent housing vouchers, when available. 

However, given the current shortage of housing resources, the HOTT program does not expect to receive 

housing vouchers to place potential participants in permanent housing units. The HOTT program still 

intends to place individuals in alternative housing and link individuals to appropriate services.  

Linkages to Services. When engaging with individuals, the HOTT team provides referrals to services to 

address their needs. If an individual agrees to participate in the HOTT program, the HOTT team focuses 

on immediately connecting the individual to resources that address their current situation, including 

medical and mental health care, as well as a limited amount of short-term and emergency housing. The 

case managers assess what supports are needed, which may range from a variety of services, including 

benefits assistance, referrals to existing services throughout the city and county, food resources, hygiene 

kits, transportation vouchers, and other goods and services to help support their basic needs and self-

sufficiency.  

Increase in Self-Sufficiency. The overall goal is for HOTT to engage individuals in the program, provide 

access to needed resources during the program to support the transition from homelessness, and connect 

the individual to ongoing services likely to prevent further episodes of homelessness and promote health 

and mental health as well as increased self-sufficiency.  

Target Population 

As previously mentioned, the HOTT program serves individuals experiencing chronic homelessness who 

also may be experiencing severe and persistent mental illness (SPMI) or functional impairments due to a 

mental health problem. There are no formal eligibility criteria; therefore, anyone that fits the 

characteristics of the program’s target population may participate.   

HOTT Program Staff 

In order to meet the needs of the HOTT program’s target population, the City of Berkeley’s HOTT team is 

composed of one program manager and four case managers. The program manager oversees and 

manages the daily program activities, while the case managers’ primary focus is to outreach to and engage 

potential clients as well as provide case management support for clients who choose to work with the 

HOTT program. Currently there are two case managers, and the program is in the process of hiring two 

additional case managers. The fourth case manager will be a licensed or license-eligible clinician who will 

be able to conduct clinical assessments and review Medi-Cal documentation.  The program also has one 

supervisor and one director to provide program oversight, one intern from the Master’s in Social Welfare 

(MSW) program at University of California, Berkeley, as well as administrative staff from the City of 

Berkeley’s Mental Health Division to provide administrative support. 

17



Evaluation Methodology 

The City of Berkeley’s Mental Health Division contracted with Resource Development Associates (RDA) to 

conduct an evaluation of the three-year implementation and outcomes of the HOTT program. Although 

the HOTT program launched in 2017, data were not yet collected until 2018. Thus, this report summarizes 

evaluation findings from the pilot program implementation from January 2018 through October 2018. 

To effectively measure the implementation of HOTT program activities and outcomes, RDA used a mixed 

methods approach which utilized data from multiple sources. By utilizing mixed methods, RDA will be able 

to better understand the client experience and outcomes as well as identify the program strengths and 

challenges from the clients’ perspective.  

Evaluation questions. The evaluation study design, data collection methods, and data analysis all served 

to address the following key evaluation questions: 

1. To what extent does HOTT identify and sustain engagement of clients with the HOTT team? 

2. To what extent does the HOTT team successfully link consumers to ongoing services? 

3. To what extent do clients experience a change in housing status and self-sufficiency? 

4. To what extent does the HOTT program support the city and county’s efforts to reduce 

homelessness and the impact on the community?  

Data Sources. RDA gathered quantitative data to understand demographics of clients, goods and services 

provided, and referrals to HOTT program. In addition, RDA gathered qualitative data through focus groups 

with program staff and clients to assess staff member and HOTT participant’s perspective of outreach and 

engagement, referrals and case management, and outcomes of clients as a result of program 

participation. Specific data collection tools are describes in Appendix A. 

Data Analysis. RDA conducted descriptive statistics for client level data to 1) assess the efficacy of program 

implementation, 2) determine who is being referred and served, how much and in what ways, and 3) 

determine the success of the referral and linkage process. RDA analyzed qualitative data from focus 

groups to better understand quantitative data findings and describe the client and staff experiences. To 

analyze qualitative data, RDA transcribed responses from focus groups and thematically analyzed 

responses to identify reoccurring themes and key takeaways. In addition, RDA summarizes impact stories 

gathered during focus groups. This report presents findings from multiple data sources to tell a complete 

story of the HOTT program implementation and outcomes achieved throughout the program.  

Limitations. It is important to note that any key findings that are found from RDA’s analysis of process 

and outcome measures of the HOTT program cannot solely be attributed to the HOTT program, and there 

may be other factors that influence client and program outcomes. Examples of other factors that can 

influence client and program outcomes include the availability of permanent supportive housing and 

other needed resources required to support clients to transition from homelessness and increase self-

sufficiency. In addition, program data collection did not start until 2018, so the quantitative data described 

in this evaluation report does not capture activities conducted in 2017. 

18



Evaluation Findings 

The HOTT program has achieved substantial accomplishments and created an impactful program 

approach that distinguishes it from other homeless service programs. The evaluation data identified the 

following program achievements and distinctive program characteristics during the evaluation period: 

 The HOTT program serves as an important resource for the local community. 

 The HOTT program works with anyone and meets them where they are. 

 The HOTT Program is rooted in compassion and dignity. 

 People experience immediate and tangible support. 

 The HOTT program successfully engaged with chronically homeless individuals who had a history 

of refusing services. 

 The HOTT program stays with clients throughout their experience navigating the system. 

 Despite challenges in navigating housing system, the HOTT program has successfully connected 

homeless individuals to housing. 

The following section discusses the evaluation results supporting the key findings listed above. 

The HOTT program serves as an important resource for the local community 

The Berkeley HOTT program’s Office of the Day (OD) responds to calls and inquiries from the community. 

Responses were either by phone, email, or in person. In 2018, Berkeley HOTT staff assigned to OD duty 

responded to 1,354 inquiries with two-thirds of inquiries (n=902) being in person and one-third of 

inquiries (n=450) being over the phone.3 Many OD calls came from the community (e.g., residents, 

businesses) and City of Berkeley partners (e.g., mental health, crisis response, and law enforcement). 

Figure 1. Number of Calls or Inquiries Received by Berkeley HOTT Program, by month, 2018 (n=1,354) 

 

3 The cumulative total is higher, since this estimate does not include calls in 2017. 

64 70
47

139
119

141 133

172
150

228

91

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

al
ls

 R
ec

ei
ve

d

19



Overall, the HOTT program is an important resource for the 

homeless population as well as local businesses, city programs, 

shelters, and all entities that are interconnected with the issue of 

homelessness. The majority of inquiries (67%) were made over the 

phone and the rest (33%) were inquiries made in person with 

HOTT program staff while they were in the field. Nearly half of 

inquiries (47%) were related to the referral of individuals in need 

of housing, medical or mental health services, disability services, 

benefits, transportation, or other basic needs. The rest of the calls were either a follow-up or check-in 

with existing HOTT clients (15%), referral to shelter or temporary housing (13%), referral of individuals 

needed for general outreach services (12%), referral to HOTT or BACS (3%), or other reasons (1%). Many 

OD inquiries (17%, n=227) resulted in the referral of an individual to the HOTT program.  

In 2018, there was a total of 244 referrals to the HOTT program for 205 unique individuals.4,5 As shown in 

Figure 2, the Berkeley HOTT program received a large number of referrals in March 2018, likely due to 

heightened awareness of the program throughout the city, and then received steady referrals after this 

point.  

Figure 2. HOTT Program Referrals Received, 2018 (n=244) 

 

Referrals came from many different stakeholder groups, but the majority of HOTT referrals came from 

the following sources: local homeless shelters (23%), City of Berkeley (10%), Berkeley HOTT program staff 

(7%), Berkeley Food & Housing Project (7%), UC Berkeley (7%), Berkeley Mental Health (5%), and Mobile 

Crisis Team (5%) (Figure 3). In addition, a small number of referrals were self-referrals from the homeless 

community.  

4 The cumulative total is higher, since this estimate does not include referrals in 2017. 
5 Names of referred individuals was often not provided or inaccurate. 

1
6

61

22
15

28
23 24

16

37

11

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

R
ef

er
ra

ls

“We respond as soon as 

possible. Usually responding 

quickly is something that people 

appreciate, especially when they 

are calling about people.” 

– Berkeley HOTT Program Staff 

20



Figure 3. HOTT Program Referral Sources, 2018 (n=244) 

 

Furthermore, the HOTT program has successfully 

collaborated with other government agencies, service 

providers, and homeless shelters to provide coordinated 

support during a homeless individual’s greatest time of 

need. Based on client responses in focus groups and the 

diversity of referral sources, the HOTT program has served 

as a connector of gaps in the system and an important 

resource for the City of Berkeley. 

The following impact story highlights how Berkeley HOTT program successfully collaborated with a local 

hospital and temporary housing partners to connect a family with services during a critical transition. 

  

1%

2%

2%

2%

2%

2%

3%

3%

4%

5%

5%

5%

7%

7%

7%

20%

23%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

311

Women's Drop In Clinic

Other

Options Recovery Services

Dorothy Day House

Libraries and community centers

Berkeley Resident

Local hospital or clinic

Unknown

Berkeley Food & Housing Project

Berkeley or Albany Police Dept

Berkeley Mental Health

Berkeley Businesses

UC Berkeley

HOTT program

City of Berkeley

Local homeless shelter

“We have a lot of collaboration with 

Alta Bates and fire department. If they 

know of a client that is coming out of 

the hospital that needs a place to stay, 

then we provide a motel voucher.”  

– Berkeley HOTT Program Staff 

 

 

21



Impact Story from Berkeley HOTT Program Client6 

Sarah and Tim are a young couple. As they were expecting a child, they struggled to pay their rent and 
were evicted from their home. Up until going to the hospital for the birth, they stayed in shelter homes 
in Berkeley. Through the coordination of the local hospital and the HOTT program, the couple and their 
newborn baby was able to have a safe, warm place to stay while they waited for their permanent 
supportive housing application to be processed. 

“My wife and I just had a baby at the local hospital, and when we got discharged from 
the hospital after my wife gave birth, we had nowhere to go. The HOTT team worked 
with the hospital to make sure that we had a safe warm motel room to stay in while 
we figured out what to do. The HOTT team helped us figure out how to get into a 
housing program and do the housing application. They stayed with us to help with the 
application through every step of the way. Now, we are still staying at the hotel but 
waiting for our application to get approved so we can finally have a more stable home 
for us and the baby.” 

The HOTT program works with a diverse group of vulnerable individuals and 

serves people regardless of their background or circumstance  

The HOTT program staff engages with individuals with diverse backgrounds and circumstance no matter 

where they were in the spectrum between insecurely housed and chronically homeless.  

The majority of the 205 individuals referred to the HOTT program had a history of being chronically 

homeless (80%), having mental illness (62%), being hospitalized (35%), having alcohol or substance use 

issues (40%), or being incarcerated or arrested (23%). Half of referred individuals (51%) had high profile 

problematic behaviors in public and the majority (66%) of referred individuals were unsheltered. The 

HOTT program served people from diverse backgrounds, as shown in the demographic profile below: 

 Age. The average individual was 47 years old (ranging from 21 to 81 years). 

 Language. Most individuals (77%) spoke English. 

 Race. Most individuals referred were Black or African American (34%), White (33%), or not 

reported (25%); among those with some other race (8%), Asian and American Indian or Alaska 

Native race were represented but exact numbers are not reported to protect client 

confidentiality. 

 Ethnicity. Most individuals (67%) were not Hispanic. 

 Income. Among the 116 individuals reported a primary income source, most individuals had 

supplemental security income sources (68%) or no income source (32%). 

6 Names have been changed to protect client confidentiality. 

22



See Appendix B for a detailed table describing the demographic profile of referred individuals.7  

The HOTT program conducted self-sufficiency assessments with 30 individuals, the majority (57%) of 

whom were formally enrolled in the program. Most (90%) were chronically homeless and were assessed 

to be highly vulnerable (i.e., scored low on self-sufficiency assessment) when they initially made contact 

with the HOTT program, particularly in the domains of housing, mobility, and family and social 

relationships. See Appendix C for self-sufficiency matrix scores among enrolled clients. 

The HOTT program provides intensive outreach and engagement to meet 

clients where they are at, both literally and figuratively 

HOTT program staff met with clients where they were physically located, and they also met clients 

figuratively in a way that valued where they were in terms of their trust in public agencies and their mental 

or emotional state. The majority (60%) of contacts were done in-person where the client was located or 

needed support (e.g., community, park, encampment, motel), while other contacts were done over the 

phone (34%) or at a site where client received services (e.g., DMV, clinic) (4%). Community locations 

included the Dorothy Day Breakfast, People’s Park, local homeless shelters, Women’s Drop-In Clinic, Civic 

Center Park, encampments, and Berkeley Public Library. 

Berkeley HOTT team conducted a total of 1,506 outreach and engagement contacts for 319 unique 

individuals in 2018.8 As shown in Figure 4, the Berkeley HOTT team gradually conducted more contacts 

over the course of the year. The HOTT team conducted outreach and engagement averaging 42 minutes 

per encounter (range 1 minute – 7 hours), with an average of 5 encounters per person (median 1 

encounter, range 1 – 74 encounters). Although engagement periods with clients ranged broadly between 

one day and 16 months, most engagement periods only lasted approximately one day or less.  

Figure 4. Number of Contacts with Clients, 2018 (n=1,504)9 

 

7 Demographic data were only collected from referred individuals and enrolled individuals; demographic data were 
not collected for every engaged individual since the personal inquiries may be disengaging and counterproductive 
towards building trust. 

8 The cumulative total is higher, since this estimate does not include contacts in 2017. 
9 Contact dates were unknown for two encounters. 

68

135 126

173 168

209

127
147 144

207

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

o
n

ta
ct

s

23



The HOTT program formally enrolled 37 individuals who received longer and more intense engagement 

periods compared to non-enrolled individuals, with an average engagement period of 5 months (range 1 

day - 16 months) and an average of 24 encounters per person (range 1 – 74 encounters) ( 

Table 1).  

Table 1. Engagement Period by Enrollment Status, 2018 

 Non-Enrolled Clients 
(n=282) 

Enrolled Clients 
(n=37) 

Encounters per person   

Average 2 24 

Range 1-39 1-74 

Length of Encounter per person 

Average 33 minutes 49 minutes 

Range 0 - 420 minutes 0 - 390 minutes 

Length of Engagement Period per person 

Average 22 days 152 days 

Range 1-279 days 1-469 

HOTT program staff also met with homeless individuals in 

a style that was effective and met them where they were 

in terms of their mental and emotional state, as well their 

trust in others. Through multiple attempts to engage 

individuals and build trust, HOTT program staff tailored 

their approach based on the individual’s values and 

needs, and connected with them in a way that is effective 

for them.  

After an initial outreach, the HOTT program staff would 

make multiple attempts to engage with homeless 

individuals and build trust. At each visit, they approached 

the client with an open mind and compassionate heart, 

and inquired how they can help him or her out. 

Sometimes, it would take several visits and check-ins to 

establish trust with the individual. Nearly half (49%) of the 

37 individuals formally enrolled into the HOTT program 

required substantial initial outreach and engagement to 

build trust and rapport, which took an average of 36 days (range 1 day – 3.5 months) and 2 encounters 

(range 1-5 encounters). All outreach and engagement efforts were tailored to the needs and preferences 

of the client. Through these efforts, the HOTT program staff successfully engaged with chronically 

homeless individuals who had a history of refusing services. 

  

“Sometimes, they’ll take off on foot when 

they see us coming. We just kept coming 

and they noticed that we don’t give up 

easy. We know people need things and we 

come back and check in.”  

– Berkeley HOTT Program Staff 

“They kept coming for months and never 

gave up on me. And I eventually gave in. In 

other programs, after the ‘soft handover’, 

we never see them anymore and it 

becomes hard. But I know the HOTT team 

is there for me.”  

– Berkeley HOTT Client 

 

24



The HOTT program is rooted in compassion and dignity 

The HOTT program’s approach rooted in compassion and 

dignity helped build strong relationships and trust with 

the homeless community. Clients described the HOTT 

program staff as open-minded, honest, caring, authentic, 

thorough, respectful, and compassionate. They 

highlighted the importance of their team-based 

approach. 

Clients expressed appreciation for the HOTT program’s 

staff approach rooted in authentic compassion when 

offering services, while maintaining respect and 

promoting dignity. For example, HOTT program staff 

often provided encouragement and empowerment for 

clients; they will accompany clients the first time they go 

to a new provider, and then provide clients with a bus 

pass for their next appointment. This incremental 

approach towards building self-sufficiency has been 

impactful for clients. 

Oftentimes, clients want to stay connected to HOTT program staff and continue fostering relationships 

even after they are housed. The HOTT program serves to encourage them to maintain secure housing and 

continue to promote their self-sufficiency.  

The following impact story summarizes how Berkeley HOTT program was able to reconnect an individual 

with critical medical services and give him the support and resources to life his life with dignity.  

Impact Story from Berkeley HOTT Program Client10 

John has had a transient lifestyle for most of his life and had long given up on the system or asking for 
help. However, his harsh living conditions contributed to his failing health. The HOTT program gave him 
newfound hope in his worst moment, and convinced him to seek medical services at urgent care after 
neglecting medical attention for six years. The program gained his trust and helped him access much 
needed hospice care services and secure housing. Now he is stably housed in a hospice home. 

“I would still be on the streets and probably dead if it wasn’t for HOTT. I could have 
died and no one would have cared. Doctors told me I had months to live and I gave 
up on living. I gave up on everything for help. No one cared but the HOTT team did 
care. I’m the type of person that never asks for help, and here they were offering to 
help and they never gave up on me. I lived on the same spot for six years and never 
got medical care. They checked up on me and came back multiple times, even though 

10 Names have been changed to protect client confidentiality. 

“Respecting people’s space is the biggest 

part. When somebody is sleeping, you 

don’t go there to wake them up. Approach 

is very important in knowing when or 

when not to. We’re very sensitive about 

this. When someone says ‘not today’, we 

don’t press further.”  

– Berkeley HOTT Program Staff 

“They are always checking in to see what 

we need, like meaningful stuff. They listen 

to people, really care, and really want to 

help. ”  

– Berkeley HOTT Client 

25



I was turning them away in the beginning. I figured HOTT team was just like the other 
programs where they would just disappear after the first meeting. But I know the 
HOTT team is there. And everything the HOTT team said they would do came true. 
Now I am in hospice care getting the care that I need. I don’t know how much longer 
I have to live, but it’s a hell of a lot longer than a couple months which is what the 
doctors said. This gives me the opportunity to live my life with dignity. The HOTT 
team provided me with the positive energy just like hospice care that is so needed 
for people like me.” 

People experience immediate and tangible support 

Part of the critical factor that successfully engaged people 

to be connected to services again was the HOTT team’s 

ability to provide immediate and tangible support. Clients 

perceive the HOTT program as being different than other 

homeless outreach programs they’ve interacted with. 

Clients noted that the persistence and resourcefulness of 

the HOTT program staff helped them get immediate and 

tangible support. In particular, clients who participated in 

the focus group highlighted the following goods and services as being most helpful in their times of need: 

 “Helping me to keep appointments and follow-up appointments.” 

  “I was able to get social security card and SSI. This made a huge impact in my life.” 

  “Basic meaningful human things that I need, like medical care and the safety kit and health kit.” 

 “SSI changed my life. I was able to pay off rent and get groceries and they referred me to ACT.” 

 “Housing vouchers” 

 “Bus pass” 

 “Motel stays” 

Clients reported that goods and resources provided by the 

HOTT program helped them regain a sense of dignity and 

hope. The Berkeley HOTT team provided a total of 2,203 

goods in 2018 to support homeless individuals, including 

housing vouchers (n=352), medical supplies (n=292), goods 

for shelter (n=127), goods to help them get connected to 

benefits (n=108), food (n=107), housing application (n=80), bus passes (n=67), identification card (n=64), 

information about services and resources (n=49), hygiene kit (n=27), blanket and bedding (n=10), and 

other goods (n=920).11,12 HOTT program staff described the importance of helping clients understand the 

link between required documentation (e.g., identification card) and housing. HOTT staff noted that many 

11 Other goods included information and handouts about existing programs and services, clothing and shoes, 
disability supplies, phone call assistance, and food. 
12 The cumulative total is higher, since this estimate does not include goods and services provided in 2017. 

“We roll with the change and see how 

we can fit into the system to help. We 

find the best way to strategize and get 

the process going. We have close 

relationships with other agencies.”  

- Berkeley HOTT Program Staff 

“They relate to me. And so I am more 

likely to open up to them and get the 

sufficient help that I need.”  

- Berkeley HOTT Client 

26



clients were often not in the mental or emotional space to make those connections, so they make efforts 

to have conversations with clients to establish that link. 

In addition to items to support their basic needs, the Berkeley HOTT program made 921 referrals in 2018 

for homeless individuals to many critical services and resources, including services for transportation 

(n=192), local homeless shelter (n=162), health (n=121), mental health (n=96), community resource 

centers (n=73), legal support (n=58), social services (n=38), and other services (n=181).13,14 Individuals 

formally enrolled in the HOTT program received a higher number of goods and referrals per person 

compared to non-enrolled individuals (Table 2).  

Table 2. Goods and Service Linkages Provided, by Enrollment Status, 2018 

 Non-enrolled Clients 
(n=282) 

Enrolled Clients 
(n=37) 

Goods Provided   

Total Goods 847 1,356 

Total Persons Served 274 33 

Average Per Person 3  41 

Referrals Provided   

Total Referrals 323 598 

Total Persons Served 127 31 

Average Per Person 3 19 

Benefits Program Enrollments 

Total 44 73 

Total Persons Served 23 15 

Average Per Person 2 5 

Mental Health Program Enrollment 

Total 22 32 

Total Persons Served 7 8 

Average Per Person 3 4 

The HOTT program helped facilitate linkage to services through referrals as well as enrollments into 

benefits or mental health programs. The HOTT program enrolled a total of 38 individuals into benefits 

programs and 15 individuals into mental health programs. Individuals formally enrolled in the HOTT 

program had a higher rate of enrollment into benefits or mental health programs compared to non-

enrolled individuals (Table 2). 

The following impact story describes how a Berkeley HOTT program client struggled with getting support 

as a chronically homeless person and the Berkeley HOTT staff were able to connect him to services and 

help him navigate the complex system of public services and resources.  

13 Other services included assistance at DMV, AC3, Options program, pharmacy, housing programs, senior services, 
hospital or emergency department, medical supply centers, and food pantry. 
14 The cumulative total is higher, since this estimate does not include referrals and enrollments made in 2017. 

27



Impact Story from Berkeley HOTT Program Client15 

Gary is a middle-aged man who is a native to Berkeley. He has been chronically homeless for nearly 20 
years. He experienced frustration and closed doors when he first lost housing and tried to gain access 
to homeless support programs and services. After many years of living without secure housing and 
giving up on the system, he describes the HOTT program as a different type of program that finally was 
able to help him get housing when no one else could. 

“I wouldn’t be where I am today without them. In the beginning, I thought I was 
going to be homeless for a couple months, maybe 6 or 7 months at most. I lived out 
of my van and thought I just needed to get connected to the right programs that 
could help me through this rough patch. I’m a Berkeley native, born and raised. This 
is my home. When I was first homeless, it was really difficult to navigate through all 
the long list of agencies and the cycling of endless referrals.  I went through the whole 
list of 28 people to call, and no one was able to help me. They kept referring me to 
each other. I got frustrated and fed up. I was on the streets after that for 17 years 
and had given up on the system. Then I met the HOTT team and that all changed. 
This was the first time that anyone from City of Berkeley did anything and in a short 
amount of time. It was amazing. Other programs have directed me to a website. I 
know how to navigate a website. What I need is actual help. And the HOTT team has 
connected me to those services and resources that I really needed. Now I am safely 
housed and have a key to my own home!” 

The HOTT team successfully engaged with chronically homeless individuals 

who had a history of refusing services 

Clients reported how they were moved by the multiple 

attempts and persistence of the HOTT program staff. 

They have experienced many other government 

programs which made an attempt and never came 

back, or they made promises they did not keep. This 

inconsistency from public systems caused many 

homeless individuals to lose faith in the system. The 

HOTT program staff familiarized themselves with the 

homeless communities in different areas throughout 

Berkeley, and established a presence among those 

communities. By becoming a familiar face, they were 

able to earn the trust and respect of individuals who would then open up and share their hardships. 

15 Names have been changed to protect client confidentiality. 

“The first thing they see is the badge and 

they think we are here for enforcement. 

So I always come at them offering 

services. Then, they change their 

behavior once they realize that we are 

not here for enforcement. They start to 

feel a little more trust after seeing you the 

second and third time.”  

– Berkeley HOTT Program Staff 

 

28



Clients reported dealing with various crisis situations, 

such as having just gotten their stuff stolen or dealing 

with health issues, when the HOTT program staff 

approached them. They reported how the extra 

support from the HOTT program staff helped them 

through those crisis situations. In some cases where a 

client is having a mental health crisis, HOTT program staff have referred them to mobile crisis to get 

immediate support to get the individual to a safe healing space to recover. 

The following impact story summarizes the experience of two Berkeley HOTT program clients who were 

able to connect to supportive services in a way that matched their values and needs: 

Impact Story from Berkeley HOTT Program Client16 

Fred is a middle-aged man with disabilities. He and his sister, Ruth, are native to Berkeley and have 
been chronically homeless for many years. They have a close relationship and are crucial social supports 
for each other. The HOTT program recognized the importance of their values and social connections, 
and worked with the siblings to find an apartment they could live in together.  

“I used to live with my sister under the bridge in Berkeley, where we were minding our 
own business and living day by day. We found out about housing programs, but none 
of them would let us be housed together. And there was no way that we were going 
to leave each other. That’s not who we are. It’s just not right if one of us gets housed, 
and the other has to stay in the streets. So we decided to stay together in the 
encampment. We didn’t know of any other way until the HOTT team found us and 
started talking to us. First thing they did was get me a wheelchair which I need 
because of my disability. I thought, ‘Wow, they really mean what they say and can do 
what other programs cannot.’ The electric wheelchair has been a lifesaver and really 
changed my life for the better. Then, they helped me and my sister do the housing 
application and find a place where we can live together. It was unbelievable. Now, me 
and my sister live together in an apartment and we are very happy being housed 
together because we support each other every day.” 

The HOTT program stays with clients throughout their experience navigating 

the system 

One of the critical aspects of the HOTT program 

highlighted by clients was feeling like they were not alone 

in the process of navigating the system while homeless. 

Many clients discussed the hardship of being homeless and 

the daily struggles they dealt with, which made it even 

more difficult to navigate the system on their own. 

16 Names have been changed to protect client confidentiality. 

“The HOTT team takes you through 

every part of the process, which is 

really hard to do on your own.“ 

- Berkeley HOTT Client 

“We’ve worked with people who have not 

had medical care for years, and we were 

able to link them back to medical care.”  

– Berkeley HOTT Program Staff 

 

29



Furthermore, past experiences with failed public services and resources left many clients feeling 

distrustful and frustrated.  

Clients noted that the HOTT program is different from other government programs, particularly because 

the staff stay with clients as they navigate the different parts of the system. For example, in addition to 

referring clients to a disability program, the HOTT program staff provide other supports, such as reminders 

about their appointment, accompanying clients to appointments, and providing bus passes to help clients 

get to their next appointment. This is particularly helpful for many of the clients who were homeless, 

vulnerable, with low self-sufficiency, and oftentimes faced other challenges that exacerbated their 

situation, such as mental health, disability, or substance use. 

The following impact story summarizes how a Berkeley HOTT program client received critical linkages to 

supportive resources and services during his period of homelessness, which started him on a path towards 

housing, self-sufficiency, stability, and sobriety. 

Impact Story from Berkeley HOTT Program Client17 

David is a middle-aged man who became unexpectedly homeless.  The HOTT program helped him 
rebuild his life, obtain sobriety, and regain his sense of well-being and stability. 

“Because of my alcohol addition, I lost my job, my wife divorced me, and wouldn’t 
let me see the kids. I could not even go back to my own home. I had nowhere to go 
but to sleep on the streets and shelter. I did not know what to do, or where to start, 
or who to ask for help. Everything just spiraled out of control and I hit rock bottom. I 
was really not doing well, mentally and physically. Then, I was referred to the HOTT 
team and they helped me figure out how to access services and find programs that 
can help people who are like me. Now I have a home to go to, I’m staying sober and 
attending support groups to recover from my addition, and I’m working on building 
back my relationships with people.” 

Despite challenges in navigating housing system, the HOTT team has 

successfully connected homeless individuals to housing 

Both HOTT program staff and clients highlighted the 

difficulty of navigating the housing system. They reported 

the housing application process as rigid and cumbersome. 

Despite these challenges, the HOTT program was able to 

address barriers and connect a total of 83 individuals to 

housing opportunities. Among the 68 individuals who were 

connected to temporary housing, such as shelters and motels, 32% (n=22) were formally enrolled in the 

HOTT program. Among the 17 individuals who were connected to permanent housing, 47% (n=8) were 

17 Names have been changed to protect client confidentiality. 

“The people we put in rapid-rehousing 

have maintained their housing and 

their health has improved.”  

– Berkeley HOTT Program Staff 

30



formally enrolled in the HOTT program. Among individuals connected to permanent housing, the HOTT 

program engaged with them for an average of 5 months and had an average of 23 encounters with them. 

Discussion 

Through the HOTT program, the City of Berkeley has added a crucial link between public systems that has 

helped homeless or housing-insecure individuals connect to supportive services and resources. In 

addition, the HOTT program has connected with chronically homeless individuals who have historically 

been disconnected from the system and disengaged from previous outreach efforts. The establishment 

of strong relationships and values as a foundation of trust is a critical component of HOTT program’s 

service model, which can inform other outreach programs in City of Berkeley who are trying to engage 

with chronically homeless individuals.  

The following section describes recommendations on ways to improve this important program, as well as 

next steps for future evaluation reports. 

Recommendations 

Continue to build awareness of the HOTT program in community. The HOTT program staff have relied 

primarily on outreach and word-of-mouth to inform the community about what HOTT program does and 

have been effective building awareness of the program in this way. Now that the program is established, 

it may benefit from looking at opportunities to further build awareness of the program through outreach 

activities aimed at other groups, such as community organizations and government agencies. 

Continue to build capacity to address clients’ mental health challenges. The HOTT program has 

demonstrated the powerful impact of coordination between public agencies and local homeless shelters. 

Because many homeless individuals are struggling with stress, mental health issues, substance use, and 

crisis, it is important for the HOTT program and behavioral health services agencies to collaborate closely 

to reduce stigma and connect people to critical mental health services. In addition, recruiting a licensed 

or license-eligible clinician into the HOTT program team or seeking mental health training opportunities 

for HOTT program staff would increase the HOTT program’s capacity to assess mental health needs and 

connect clients to appropriate services and resources.  

Refine data collection process to track changes in clients’ housing status. Linkage to stable housing is 

one of the primary goals of the HOTT program so it is important to track clients’ housing status, particularly 

among clients who were connected to housing services through the HOTT program. HOTT program staff 

should seek ways to improve the data collection processes for housing status data. This will help inform 

future evaluation reports and better capture housing outcomes for HOTT program clients.  

Continue to build staffing capacity and resources available to the HOTT program. The HOTT program 

staff have demonstrated resilience and resourcefulness during their first year of implementation. 

However, staff hiring and retention challenges have strained the resources available to the HOTT program. 

Challenges were further exacerbated by the time-limited nature of the program, which led to hiring staff 

31



on a contract basis rather than a permanent basis. To the extent possible, the program should focus efforts 

on ensuring there are adequate program staff and resources in place in subsequent years; this is especially 

important since awareness of the program will likely increase over time, and the HOTT program would 

then receive more referrals and clients. 

Next Steps 

RDA will continue to work with HOTT program staff to collect data to inform future evaluations. Future 

reports will have larger sample samples, allowing RDA to conduct more rigorous analysis on client 

outcomes and program impacts. 

  

32



Appendices 

Appendix A. HOTT Program Evaluation Data Sources 

 HOTT Contact Form. The contact form captured the encounters that the HOTT team had with 

clients. The form was used to gather data on the location of the interaction, time spent by staff 

during the engagement, and any outcomes as a result of the interaction. This form was completed 

for all persons who engaged with HOTT program staff. 

 HOTT Referral Form. This form tracked the name of the agency that referred a potential client to 

the HOTT program. Client demographic information (such as age, ethnicity and race, income, 

primary language, insurance type, and current living situation) were also captured. The form also 

indicated whether or not a person had experienced the following: chronic homelessness, mental 

illness, hospitalization, incarceration or criminal justice involvement, drug/alcohol use, and high 

visibility/problematic street behavior. This form was completed for all persons who were referred 

to the HOTT program. 

 HOTT Client Intake and On-Going Assessment Form. The intake assessment was used to gather 

demographic client data, gather baseline information of client needs, and identify any services 

provided during that intake process. The on-going assessment form was administered on a 

quarterly basis and was used to assess changes in client needs and housing status. This form was 

completed for all persons who formally enrolled in the HOTT program. 

 Self-Sufficiency Matrix. The Self-Sufficiency Matrix is a peer-approved resource18 adapted for this 

program and evaluation, which provides a high-level picture of a client’s status across a number 

of domains. HOTT program staff completed the Self Sufficiency Matrix at intake and on a quarterly 

basis thereafter to assess changes in clients’ self-sufficiency over time. This was completed for all 

persons who formally enrolled in the HOTT program.  

 HOTT Office of the Day (OD) Tracking Log. The HOTT OD Tracking Log captured all calls from the 

city requesting the HOTT team to respond to a public concern regarding homelessness within the 

city. 

 Focus Groups with Clients. RDA facilitated focus groups with HOTT clients to gauge clients’ 

experiences with HOTT staff and services. Before beginning the focus groups, the intention of the 

focus groups was explained and informed consent was obtained from all participants. In addition, 

consent was obtained from clients who agreed to share their impact story in the report. 

 Focus Groups with Staff. RDA will facilitated focus groups with HOTT program staff to explore 

staff members’ experiences throughout the referral, outreach, and engagement process and gain 

an understanding of the successes and challenges of program implementation. Before beginning 

the focus groups, the intention of the focus groups was explained and informed consent was 

obtained from all participants. 

  

18 (2009, September). HMIS Self-Sufficiency Matrix (Sample). Retrieved from 
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/1625/hmis-self-sufficiency-matrix-sample/  

33



Appendix B. Demographic Profile of HOTT Program Clients 

Table 3. Demographic Profile of Individuals Referred to HOTT Program (n=244) 

Demographic N Percent 

Race   

Black or African American 82 34% 

White 81 33% 

Unknown  61 25% 

Other 20 8% 

Ethnicity   

Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino 164 67% 

Hispanic/Latino 25 10% 

Unknown or Refused 54 22% 

Language Spoken   

English 188 77% 

Other 9 3% 

Unknown 47 19% 

Homeless Status   

Sheltered 50 20% 

Unsheltered 156 64% 

Unknown 38 16% 

Primary Income Source   

SSI 54 22% 

None 37 15% 

SSDI 11 5% 

Other 14 6% 

Unknown 128 52% 

 

  

34



Appendix C. Self-Sufficiency Matrix Scores for HOTT Program Clients 

Table 4. Self-Sufficiency Matrix Scores for HOTT Program Clients at Intake (n=30) 

Domain Average 
Score 

Interpretation 

Housing 1.3 1 = Homeless or threatened with eviction 
2 = In transitional, temporary or substandard housing; and/or current 
rent/mortgage payment is unaffordable (over 30% of income). 

Income 2.2 2 = Inadequate income and/or spontaneous or inappropriate spending. 
3 = Can meet basic needs with subsidy; appropriate spending. 

Food 2.4 2 = Household is on food stamps. 
3 = Can meet basic food needs, but requires occasional assistance. 

Insurance 4.3 3 = Some members (e.g. children) have medical coverage. 
4 = All members can get medical care when needed, but may strain budget. 

Life Skills 2.5 2 = Can meet a few but not all needs of daily living without assistance. 
3 = Can meet most but not all daily living needs without assistance. 

Family and 
Social 

Relationships 

1.9 1 = Lack of necessary support form family or friends; abuse (e.g., domestic violence 
abuse, child abuse) is present or there is child neglect. 
2 = Family/friends may be supportive, but lack ability or resources to help; family 
members do not relate well with one another; potential for abuse or neglect. 

Mobility 1.9 1 = No access to transportation, public or private; may have car that is inoperable. 
2 = Transportation is available, but unreliable, unpredictable, unaffordable; may 
have care but no insurance, license, etc. 

Community 
Involvement 

2.1 2 = Socially isolated and/or no social skills and/or lacks motivation to become 
involved. 
3 = Lacks knowledge of ways to become involved. 

Legal 3.9 3 = Fully compliant with probation/parole terms. 
4 = Has successfully completed probation/parole within past 12 months, no new 
charges filed. 

Mental Health 2.6 2 = Recurrent mental health symptoms that may affect behavior, but not a danger 
to self/others; persistent problems with functioning due to mental health 
symptoms. 
3 = Mild symptoms may be present but are transient; only moderate difficulty in 
functioning due to mental health problems. 

Substance Use 2.9 2 = Meets criteria for dependence; preoccupation with use and/or obtaining 
drugs/alcohol; withdrawal or withdrawal avoidance behaviors evident; use results 
in avoidance or neglect of essential life activities. 
3 = Use within last 6 months; evidence of persistent or recurrent social, 
occupational, emotional or physical problems related to use (such as disruptive 
behavior or housing problems); problems have persisted for at least one month. 

Safety 2.3 2 = Safety is threatened/temporary protection is available; level of lethality is high. 
3 = Current level of safety is minimally adequate; ongoing safety planning is 
essential. 

Disabilities and 
Physical Health 

2.1 2 = Vulnerable – sometimes or periodically has acute or chronic symptoms affecting 
housing, employment, social interactions, etc. 
3 = Safe – rarely has acute or chronic symptoms affecting housing, employment, 
social interactions, etc. 

      

Legend: 1 = In Crisis 2 = Vulnerable 3 = Safe 
4 = Building 

Capacity 
5 = Empowered 

 

35



1 

M
EN

TA
L H

EA
LTH

 EQ
U

ITY C
O

M
M

ITTEE M
IN

U
TES 

D
ecem

b
er 5

, 2
:0

0
P

M
-3

:0
0

P
M

  

C
o

-Facilitato
rs:   Yvette K

atu
ala &

 B
arb

ara W
h

ite 

A
G

EN
D

A
 

A
C

TIO
N

 ITEM
(S) 

I.
W

elco
m

e
 &

In
tro

d
u

ctio
n

s
Yvette

Facilitato
r(s) P

resen
t:  Yvette K

atu
ala &

 B
arb

ara W
h

ite 
C

o
m

m
itte

e M
e

m
b

ers P
resen

t: B
o

o
n

a C
h

eem
a, D

an
 Ezekiel, Steve G

ro
ln

ic-M
cC

lu
rg, B

ab
alw

a 
K

w
an

ele, C
o

n
o

r M
u

rp
h

y,  Sab
irah

 M
u

stafa, Lau
ra Sch

ro
ed

er an
d

 Estela A
lvarez  

A
b

sen
t:  Letteria Fletch

er, M
erlen

et R
iley, an

d
 R

o
xan

n
a Tejad

a-Jo
ya 

II.
A

n
n

o
u

n
cem

en
ts &

A
d

d
itio

n
 to

 th
e A

gen
d

a
A

n
n

o
u

n
ce

m
e

n
t: 

Th
is m

eetin
g w

ill b
e co

m
b

in
ed

 fo
r b

o
th

 N
o

vem
b

er/D
ecem

b
er 20

18
 m

ee
tin

gs.  N
ext m

ee
tin

g 
w

ill o
n

 Jan
u

ary 2
3

, 2
01

9
. 

III.
Ice B

reaker
W

h
at h

ealth
y d

essert d
o

 yo
u

 like to
 m

ake an
d

 eat d
u

rin
g th

e h
o

lid
ays?  

IV
.

A
p

p
ro

val o
f O

cto
b

er 3
1

,
2

0
18

 m
in

u
tes.

M
o

tio
n

 to
 ap

p
ro

ve
 th

e O
cto

b
er 3

1, 2
01

8
 m

in
u

tes 
M

o
tio

n
 Seco

n
d

ed
.   M

o
tio

n
 C

arried
. 

V
.

D
ata P

resen
tatio

n
D

ata R
e

p
o

rtin
g:  


D

isch
arge

s fo
r FY

 15
/1

6, 1
6/1

7
an

d
 1

7
/18

 (Sep
arate H

an
d

o
u

t):
Su

m
m

ary fo
r th

e co
m

b
in

ed
 th

ree years an
d

 th
e d

etails o
f each

 year w
ere p

assed
 o

u
t

to
 th

e co
m

m
ittee

 in
 a sep

arate h
an

d
o

u
t.  Th

e acro
n

ym
s w

ere also
 d

escrib
ed

 FIT =
Fo

cu
s o

n
 In

d
ep

en
d

en
ce Team

, C
C

T=
 C

o
m

p
reh

en
sive C

o
m

m
u

n
ity Treatm

en
t, an

d
 FSP

= Fu
ll Service P

artn
ersh

ip
.

D
iscu

ssio
n

:


C

o
m

m
ittee

 su
ggested

 th
at th

e rep
o

rt b
reakd

o
w

n
 th

e d
isch

arge co
d

es b
y

eth
n

icity an
d

 gen
d

er.


O

n
 an

 average, B
M

H
 d

isch
arges 5

0
 clien

ts p
er year.

C
o

m
m

itte
e Q

u
estio

n
s:  W

h
at d

o
es “C

lien
t services w

ere ch
an

ged
 w

ith
in

 B
M

H
 

system
 o

f care
” m

ean
?  Th

is statem
en

t o
n

 th
e D

isch
arge co

d
e fo

rm
 w

as p
o

ten
tially a 

clerical erro
r.   

C
o

m
p

lian
ce to

 In
clu

d
e D

isch
arge 

catego
ry to

 Q
A

 &
Q

I au
d

it list. 

C
o

m
p

lian
ce to

 revise th
e D

isch
arge 

rep
o

rt to
 in

clu
d

e th
e b

reakd
o

w
n

 o
f 

co
d

es b
y e

th
n

icity an
d

 gen
d

er. 

R
e

m
o

ve d
ata o

n
 n

u
m

b
er 1

0
 o

f th
e 

d
isch

arge rep
o

rt. (N
O

A
-A

).  

N
e

ed
 d

ata R
easo

n
s fo

r D
isch

arge 
m

atch
ed

 again
st eth

n
icity an

d
 gen

d
er. 

36



 
 

 
 

2 

M
EN

TA
L H

EA
LTH

 EQ
U

ITY C
O

M
M

ITTEE M
IN

U
TES 

D
ecem

b
er 5

, 2
:0

0
P

M
-3

:0
0

P
M

  

C
o

-Facilitato
rs:   Yvette K

atu
ala &

 B
arb

ara W
h

ite 

C
o

m
m

ittee
 req

u
ested

 a C
h

ild
re

n
’s D

isch
arge rep

o
rt w

ith
 to

 in
clu

d
e th

e sam
e 

b
reakd

o
w

n
 o

f gen
d

er an
d

 eth
n

icity.    
  


 

B
M

H
 C

lien
t Eth

n
icity  FY

 1
6

-1
7 &

 1
5-18

 (Sep
arate

 H
an

d
o

u
t): 

D
iscu

ssio
n

:     
Th

e B
M

H
 O

p
en

 C
lien

t R
ep

o
rt sh

o
w

s th
at th

e n
u

m
b

er o
f o

p
en

 clien
ts d

ro
p

p
ed

 fro
m

 
4

2
8

 cases in
 FY 1

6
/17

 to
 3

98 cases in
 17

/1
8, p

o
ssib

ly d
u

e to
 th

e A
d

u
lt C

lin
ic b

ein
g 

d
islo

cated
.  Th

e p
ercen

tage o
f clien

ts w
h

o
 are A

frican
 A

m
erican

 in
creased

 b
etw

ee
n

 
FY1

6/1
7

 an
d

 FY17
/1

8 b
y 3

%
, fro

m
 3

4%
 to

 3
7%

.   
  D

iscu
ssio

n
 ab

o
u

t th
e in

crease
:   

 C
o

m
m

ittee
 d

iscu
ssed

 th
e in

crease an
d

 o
n

e p
o

ssib
le exp

lan
atio

n
 w

as th
at th

e o
p

en
 

clien
ts’ eth

n
icity an

d
 gen

d
er d

istrib
u

tio
n

 m
igh

t b
e very sim

ilar to
 th

e eth
n

ic an
d

 
gen

d
er co

m
p

o
sitio

n
 o

f th
e

 h
o

m
eless p

o
p

u
latio

n
 o

f B
M

H
 O

p
en

 C
ases. 

 R
e

p
o

rt sh
o

w
s th

at th
e n

u
m

b
er o

f o
p

en
 cases d

ro
p

p
ed

 fro
m

 FY 1
7

/1
8 an

d
 1

6
/17

, 
p

o
ssib

ly d
u

e to
 A

d
u

lt C
lin

ic b
ein

g d
islo

cated
.   

 Q
u

estio
n

s: 
               W

h
y th

e A
frican

 A
m

erican
 p

o
p

u
latio

n
 15%

 h
igh

er co
m

p
are

d
 to

 th
eir p

ercen
tage o

f 
M

ed
i-C

al p
o

p
u

latio
n

?   
 

Th
e co

m
m

ittee su
ggested

 th
at it review

 w
h

at p
ercen

tage o
f th

e clien
ts are listed

 as 
H

o
m

eless at in
take.  H

o
w

 is h
o

m
eless b

ein
g d

efin
ed

 b
y B

M
H

 an
d

 o
th

er gro
u

p
s?   It 

w
as su

ggested
 th

at B
M

H
 d

efin
e th

e term
 “H

o
m

eless.”  
 

C
o

m
p

lian
ce to

 p
ro

vid
e a C

h
ild

ren
’s 

D
isch

arge rep
o

rt. 
  Lo

o
k at d

ata fro
m

 5
 m

in
u

te 
P

resen
tatio

n
s to

 Le
vel o

f C
are to

 
d

eterm
in

e h
o

m
eless at in

take co
u

n
t 

an
d

 in
clu

d
e gen

d
er an

d
 eth

n
icity.   

 

D
ata to

 b
e C

o
llected

: 

1
. 

R
e

ach
 o

u
t to

 K
risten

 Lee
 in

 
H

o
u

sin
g an

d
 ask h

o
w

 H
o

u
sin

g 
d

efin
es “H

o
m

eless,” w
h

en
 th

ey d
o

 
th

e h
o

m
eless co

u
n

t.   
2

. 
R

e
view

 city o
f B

erkeley H
o

m
eless 

p
o

p
u

latio
n

 u
sin

g H
o

u
sin

g d
ata.   

3
. 

C
o

m
p

are H
o

m
eless p

o
p

u
latio

n
 

w
ith

 B
M

H
 O

p
en

 clien
ts. 

4
. 

In
clu

d
e h

o
m

eless b
reakd

o
w

n
 o

n
 

p
ercen

tage o
f gro

u
p

 w
h

o
 are 

h
o

m
eless b

y eth
n

icity an
d

 gen
d

er. 
 

V
l.   N

ext Step
s:  

To
p

 6
 P

ro
p

o
sed

 M
easu

res an
d

 ad
d

itio
n

al M
easu

res  - Tab
le fo

r Jan
u

ary 2
3

, 2
0

1
9

  
 

V
ll.  N

ext M
eetin

g:   
W

ed
n

esd
ay,  Jan

u
ary 23

, 2
01

9
, 2

:0
0

-3:00
p

m
 

 

 

37



Berkeley M
ental H

ealth Caseload Statistics for  
January 2019 

Adult Services 
Intended Ratio of 
staff to clients 

Clinical Staff 
Positions Filled 

# of clients 
M

onthly Cost 
Per 
Participant 
Per Budget* 

Fiscal Year 2019 
Dem

ographics as of January, 
2019 – Data Incom

plete Per 
Yellow

Fin 
Adult, O

lder Adult and TAY Full 
Service Partnership (FSP) 
(Highest level outpatient 
clinical case m

anagem
ent and 

treatm
ent) 

1-10 for clinical 
staff. 

6 Clinicians 
1 Team

 Lead 
70 

$1,742 
75 Clients 
Am

erican Indian: 1 
API: 3 
African-Am

erican: 25 
Hispanic: 4 
O

ther: 25 
W

hite: 17 
M

ale: 46 
Fem

ale: 29 
Adult FSP Psychiatry 

1-100 
.35 FTE 

58 
$497 

 
Com

prehensive Com
m

unity 
Treatm

ent (CCT) 
(High level outpatient clinical 
case m

anagem
ent and 

treatm
ent) 

1-20  
9.5 Clinicians 
.5 Lead Clinician 
1 N

on-Degreed 
Clinical 
1 M

anager 

162 
$870 

181 Clients 
API: 9 
African-Am

erican: 64 
Hispanic: 7 
O

ther: 48 
W

hite: 53 
M

ale: 101 
Fem

ale: 80 
CCT Psychiatry 

1-200 
1.0 

128 
$317 

 
Focus on Independence Team

 
(FIT) 
(Low

er level of care, only for 
individuals previously on FSP or 
CCT) 

1-20 Team
 Lead,  

1-50 Post M
asters 

Clinical 
1-30 N

on-Degreed 
Clinical 

1 Clinical 
Supervisor, I 
Licensed 
Clinician, 1 CHW

 
Sp./ N

on-
Degreed Clinical 

98 
$359 
 

102 Clients 
API: 3 
African Am

erican: 39 
Hispanic: 3 
O

ther: 17 
W

hite: 40 
M

ale: 64 
Fem

ale: 38 
FIT Psychiatry 

1-200 
.5 

87 
$346 

 
 

38



Fam
ily, Youth and Children’s 

Services  
Intended Ratio of staff 
to clients 

Clinical 
Staff 
Positions 
Filled 

# of clients 
M

onthly 
Cost Per 
Participant 
Per 
Budget* 

Fiscal Year 2019 
Dem

ographics as of January, 
2019 – Data Incom

plete Per 
Yellow

Fin 

Children’s Full Service 
Partnership 

1-8 
2.0 Clinical 

12 
$2,207 

17 Clients 
API: 1 
African-Am

erican: 8 
Hispanic: 2 
O

ther: 2 
W

hite: 4 
M

ale: 10 
Fem

ale: 7 
Early and Periodic Screening, 
Diagnostic and Treatm

ent 
Prevention (EPSDT) 
/Educationally Related M

ental 
Health Services (ERM

HS) 

1-20 
2.5 Clinical 

55 
$895 
 

66 Clients 
API: 4 
African-Am

erican: 24 
Hispanic: 9 
O

ther: 15 
W

hite: 14 
M

ale: 44 
Fem

ale: 22 
High School Health Center and 
Berkeley Technological 
Academ

y 

1-6 Clinician (m
ajority of 

tim
e spent on crisis 

counseling) 

1 Clinical 
Lead,1.5 
Clinical, 5 
Interns 

Treatm
ent: 70 

Groups: 8 
offered, 7 
conducted 
Drop In (Crisis): 
49 
 

N
/A 

N
/A 

        Crisis, ACCESS, and Hom
eless 

Services 
Staff 
Ration 

Clinical Staff 
Positions Filled 

Total # of 
Clients/Incidents  

Hom
eless O

utreach and 
Treatm

ent Team
 (HO

TT) 
1-10 Case 
M

anager  
1-3 Team

 
Lead 

1 Team
 Lead 

2 Case M
anagers 

30 enrolled clients for 
the m

onth.   

39



44 non-enrolled 
individuals received 
outreach. 

HO
TT Psychiatry 

1-100 
0 

0 
M

obile Crisis 
N

/A 
3 Clinicians,  

• 
137 Incidents 

• 
63 5150 Evals 

• 
21 5150 Evals 
leading to 
involuntary 
transport 

Transitional O
utreach Team

 
(TO

T) 
N

/A 
1 Clinician, 1 N

on-
Licensed Staff 

92 Incidents 

 N
ot reflected in above chart is Early Childhood Consultation, ACCESS, W

ellness and Recovery Program
m

ing, or Fam
ily Support. 

*M
onthly Cost To Be Determ

ined – Budget in new
 form

at, requires additional analysis to identify treatm
ent team

 costs. 

 

40



BMH HOMELESS COUNT AT INTAKE: OPEN CLIENTS FY 17/18
African API White Other Totals

American

Gender

Female 5 0 5 0 10 45%
Male 4 0 8 0 12 55%

Total 9 0 13 0 22

41% 0% 59% 0%

BMH TOTAL OPEN CLIENTS FY 17/18
African API White Other Totals

American

Gender

Female 8 1 10 2 21 48%
Male 8 1 12 2 23 52%

Total 16 2 22 4 44

36% 5% 50% 9%

COB CALENDAR YR 2017 "Point-In-Time" Homeless Count

Gender Race
Male 590 61% White 262 27%
Female 368 38% Black 486 50%
Transgender 10 1% Asian 25 3%
Another Gender 4 0% Amer. Ind. 35 4%

Total 972 Oth. Pac. Isl. 2 0%
Multiple Races 162 17%

Total 972

"Point-in-Time": The US Department of Housing & Urban Development requires any
jurisdiction receiving federal money to complete a survey of all homeless individuals
every two years.

  Federal Definition of Homelessness

Individuals and families: Living in a supervised publicly or privately 
operated shelter designated to provide temporary living 

arrangement (including congregate shelters, transitional housing, 
and hotels and motels paid for by charitable organizations or by 

federal, state, or local government programs for low income 
individuals); or with a primary nighttime residence that is a public or 

private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular 
sleeping accommodation for human beings, including a car, park, 

abandoned building, bus or train station, airport, or camping 
ground.

41



42



State of California Health and Human Services Agency Department of Health Care Services

DETAIL COST REPORT 

INFORMATION SHEET

MH1900 (Rev. 04/2018)

SECTION I : ALL LEGAL ENTITIES :
All Legal Entities are to complete Section I.

Name of Preparer: KAREN MILES, KV CONSULTING

Date: 1/28/2019

Legal Entity Name: CITY OF BERKELEY

Legal Entity Number: 00065

County: ALAMEDA

County Code: 01
Is this a County Legal Entity Report?

(Yes or No) 2

Are you reporting SD/MC?

(Yes or No)
1

SECTION II:COUNTY LEGALENTITY ONLY:

Only County Legal Entities are to Complete Section II.

Address:

Phone Number:
1

Inpatient Services
Outpatient Services

Inpatient Services
Outpatient Services

Legal Entity Number (FFS):

Psychiatrist:

Psychologist:

Mixed Specialty Group:

RN:

LCSW:

MFCC (MFT):

Mode of Services SD/MC Settlement Group AdjustmentstoFFP
Mode 05 - Hospital Inpatient Services SDMC-07/01/17 - 06/30/18

Mode 05 - Other 24 Hour Services SD/MC Enhanced-Children E2, E4, E5-07/01/17 - 06/30/18

Mode10 - Day Services SD/MC Enhanced-Children-07/01/17 - 06/30/18

Mode15 - Outpatient Services SD/MC Enhanced-BCCTP-07/01/17 - 06/30/18

MAA SD/MC Enhanced-Pregnancy-07/01/17 - 06/30/18

Total Adjustments to FFP -$                                                   SD/MC Enhanced-Refugee-07/01/17 - 06/30/18
Cross Checks OK Affordable Care Act-07/01/17 - 12/31/17

Affordable Care Act-01/01/18 - 06/30/18

Line11&12Macro 2 MAASFC01-09

MAASFC11-19,31-39

MCAP 07/01/17 - 06/30/18

Total Adjustments to FFP -$                                              

Adjust Medi-Cal FFP Due to Costs in Excess of FFP
Adjustments by Mode of Service (Used to Calculate FFP on the MH1992) Adjustments by Settlement Group (Used to Populate Col.I - MH1979)

FISCAL YEAR 2017 - 2018

County Population : Over 125,000?

(Yes or No):

Contract Provider Other Medi-Cal Direct Service Gross Reimbursement (Used to populate 
MH1979 Line2)

Contract Provider SD/MC Enhanced (Children) Direct Service Gross Reimbursement ( Used to 
populate MH1979 Line 8)

Fee For Service - Mental Health Specialty 

43



State of California Health and Human Services Agency Department of Health Care Services

DETAIL COST REPORT

SCHEDULE OF STATEWIDE MAXIMUM ALLOWANCES AND PUBLISHED CHARGES
MH1901 SCHEDULE A (Rev. 04/2018)                FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

Entity Name:CITY OF BERKELEY Entity Number: 00065

A B C D E F G

SERVICE STATE COUNTY RATE
FUNCTION APPROVED PUBLISHED NONM/C FOR

SERVICE FUNCTION MODE CODE SMA (NR) CHARGE CONTRACTRATE ALLOCATION

A. 24-HOUR SERVICES

1 Hospital Inpatient 05 10-18 $0.00
2 Hospital Administrative Day 05 19 $489.28 $0.00
3 Psychiatric Health Facility (PHF) 05 20-29 $0.00
4 SNF Intensive 05 30-34 $0.00
5 IMD Basic (No Patch) 05 35 $0.00
6 IMD (With Patch) 05 36-39 $0.00
7 Adult Crisis Residential 05 40-49 $0.00
8 Jail Inpatient 05 50-59 $0.00
9 Residential Other 05 60-64 $0.00
10 Adult Residential 05 65-79 $0.00
11 Semi-Supervised Living 05 80-84 $0.00
12 Independent Living 05 85-89 $0.00
13 MH Rehab Centers 05 90-94 $0.00
14 Therapeutic Foster Care 05 95-98 $0.00

B. DAY SERVICES

Crisis Stabilization
Emergency Room 10 20-24 $0.00

16 Urgent Care 10 25-29 $0.00
17 Vocational Services 10 30-39 $0.00
18 Socialization 10 40-49 $0.00
19 SNF Augmentation 10 60-69 $0.00

Day Treatment Intensive
Half Day

21 Full Day 10 85-89 $0.00
Day Rehabilitation
Half Day

23 Full Day 10 95-99 $0.00
C. OUTPATIENT SERVICES

24 Case Management , Brokerage 15 01-09 $6.82 $0.00
25 Mental Health Services 15 10-19 $7.01 $0.00
26 Mental Health Services 15 30-59 $6.63 $0.00
27 Medication Support 15 60-69 $13.56 $0.00
28 Crisis Intervention 15 70-79 $6.26 $0.00

 

29 Mental Health Promotion 45 10-19 $0.00
30 Community Client Services 45 20-29 $0.00

E. MEDI-CAL ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES

31 Medi-Cal Outreach 55 01-03
32 Medi-Cal Eligibility Intake 55 04-06 91.76% Quarter1
33 Medi-Cal Contract Administration 55 07-08 90.87% Quarter2
34 MAA Coordination and Claims Administration 55 09 87.86% Quarter3
35 Referral-Crisis,Non-Open Case 55 11-13 89.18% Quarter4
36 MH Services Contract Administration 55 14-16 89.92% Average
37 Discounted Mental Health Outreach 55 17-19
38 SPMP Case Management,Non-Open Case 55 21-23
39 SPMP Program Planning and Development 55 24-26
40 SPMP MAA Training 55 27-29
41 Non-SPMP Case Management , Non-Open Case 55 31-34
42 Non-SPMP Program Planning and Development 55 35-39

F. SUPPORT SERVICES

Conservatorship
Investigation 60 20-29 $0.00

44 Administration 60 30-39 $0.00
45 Life Support / Board & Care 60 40-49 $0.00
46 Case Management Support 60 60-69 $0.00
47 Client Housing Support Expenditures 60 70 $0.00
48 Client Housing Operating Expenditures 60 71 $0.00
49 Client Flexible Support Expenditures 60 72 $0.00
50 Non Medi-Cal Capital Assets 60 75 $0.00
51 Other Non Medi-Cal Client Support Expenditures 60 78 $0.00

43

15

20

22

81-8410

10

$0.00

91-94 $0.00

44



S
ta

te
 o

f C
a
lifo

rn
ia

 H
e
a
lth

 a
n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y

D
e

p
a

rtm
e

n
to

fH
e

a
lth

C
a

re
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

D
E

T
A

IL
 C

O
S

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T

W
O

R
K

S
H

E
E

T
 F

O
R

 U
N

IT
S

 O
F

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
Y

 M
O

D
E

 A
N

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 F

U
N

C
T

IO
N

M
H

1
9
0
1
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L
E

 B
 0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
F

IS
C

A
L
Y

E
A

R
2
0
1
7
 - 2

0
1
8

E
n

tity N
a

m
e

 : C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

E
R

K
E

L
E

Y

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I
J

K
L

M
N

O
P

Q
R

S
T

U
V

W
X

Y
Z

S
e

ttle
m

e
n

t 

T
yp

e
M

o
d

e
S

F

T
o

ta
l U

n
its

 o
f 

S
e

rvic
e

S
D

/M
C

 U
n

its

M
e

d
i-

M
e

d
iC

ro
s
s
o

v

e
r U

n
its

S
D

/M
C

 3
rd

 

P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

C
h

ild
re

n
 

U
n

its
 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 

0
6

/3
0

/1
8

    

E
2

, E
4

, E
5

C
h

ild
re

n
 

U
n

its
 3

rd
 

P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

- 

0
6

/3
0

/1
8

 

E
2

,E
4

 E
5

C
h

ild
re

n
 

U
n

its
 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 

0
6

/3
0

/1
8

C
h

ild
re

n
 

U
n

its
 3

rd
 

P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

- 

0
6

/3
0

/1
8

 

B
C

C
T

P
 

U
n

its

B
C

C
T

P
 3

rd
 

P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y 

U
n

its

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y 

3
rd

 P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

R
e

fu
g

e
e

 

U
n

its

R
e

fu
g

e
e

 3
rd

 

P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 

C
a

re
 A

c
t 

U
n

its

3
rd

 P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 

C
a

re
 A

c
t 

U
n

its

3
rd

 P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

M
C

A
P

 U
n

its

3
rd

 P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

S
B

7
5

 U
n

its

S
B

7
5

 3
rd

 

P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

N
o

n
 M

e
d

i-

C
a

l U
n

its
1

C
R

1
5

0
1

1
8

4
,8

7
2

           
1

0
1

,8
0

9
      

1
,7

3
5

          
1

0
,7

6
2

2
2

,5
6

5
4

8
,0

0
1

        
2

C
R

1
5

1
0

6
7

,8
6

1
             

4
6

,9
2

5
        

9
,4

6
9

          
3

9
5

8
2

0
1

0
,2

5
2

        
3

C
R

1
5

3
0

1
6

0
,8

8
0

           
1

1
4

,1
6

9
      

8
,9

5
7

          
7

,3
9

9
8

,3
9

9
2

1
,9

5
6

        
4

C
R

1
5

4
0

5
5

3
,3

3
8

           
4

4
9

,3
6

9
      

2
4

,3
4

4
$

      
2

5
,7

4
2

        
1

7
,5

2
0

1
5

,4
0

7
4

5
,3

0
0

        
5

C
R

1
5

5
0

6
3

2
                   

-
              

4
6

6
             

0
0

1
6

6
             

6
C

R
1

5
6

0
1

2
2

,4
3

8
           

1
0

9
,2

7
9

      
-

              
3

,0
4

2
2

,6
7

1
7

,4
4

6
          

7
C

R
1

5
7

0
1

3
,3

7
5

             
9

,7
8

0
          

8
3

0
             

1
,0

1
0

1
,3

4
0

4
1

5
             

8
C

R
4

5
2

0
1

                       
1

                 
9

C
R

4
5

2
1

1
                       

1
                 

1
0

M
A

A
5

5
0

1
9

2
,5

4
9

             
9

2
,5

4
9

        
1

1
M

A
A

5
5

0
4

6
0

0
                   

6
0

0
             

1
2

M
A

A
5

5
1

0
3

0
                     

3
0

               
1

3
M

A
A

5
5

1
1

9
0

,3
0

5
             

9
0

,3
0

5
        

1
4

M
A

A
5

5
2

1
1

2
2

,4
1

2
           

1
2

2
,4

1
2

      
1

5
M

A
A

5
5

2
7

4
6

,3
0

0
             

4
6

,3
0

0
        

1
6

M
A

A
5

5
3

1
4

2
,8

1
7

             
4

2
,8

1
7

        
1

7
C

R
6

0
7

0
1

                       
1

                 
1

8
C

R
6

0
7

2
1

                       
1

                 
1

9
C

R
6

0
7

5
1

                       
1

                 
2

0
                    

2
1

                    
2

2
                    

2
3

                    
2

4
                    

2
5

                    
2

6
                    

2
7

                    
2

8
                    

2
9

                    
3

0
                    

3
1

                    
3

2
                    

3
3

                    
3

4
                    

3
5

                    
3

6
                    

3
7

                    
3

8
                    

3
9

                    
4

0
                    

4
1

                    
4

2
                    

4
3

                    
4

4
                    

4
5

                    
4

6
                    

4
7

                    
4

8
                    

4
9

                    
5

0
                    

5
1

                    
5

2
                    

5
3

                    
5

4
                    

5
5

                    
5

6
                    

5
7

                    
5

8
                    

5
9

                    
6

0
                    

M
e

d
iC

a
l fo

r a
ll C

h
ild

re
n

 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 C
a

re
 A

c
t 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 1
2

/3
1

/1
7

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 C
a

re
 A

c
t 

0
1

/0
1

/1
8

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

M
e

d
i-C

a
l  A

c
c

e
s

s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 (M

C
A

P
) 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

C
R

-C
o
s
t R

e
im

b
u
rs

e
m

e
n
t

E
N

H
A

N
C

E
D

 F
M

A
P

 S
H

O
R

T
/D

O
Y

L
E

 M
E

D
I-C

A
L

 0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

A
L

L
 U

N
IT

S
 0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 F
M

A
P

 S
H

O
R

T
/D

O
Y

L
E

 M
E

D
I-

C
A

L
 0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8

S
e
ttle

m
e
n
t 

T
y
p
e
s

A
S

O
-A

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

rg
a
n
iz

a
tio

n

IS
A

-In
te

g
ra

te
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

g
e
n
c
y

T
B

S
-T

h
e
ra

p
e
u
tic

 B
e
h
a
v
io

ra
l S

e
rv

ic
e
s

M
A

A
-M

e
d
i-C

a
l A

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 A

c
tiv

itie
s

C
C

R
 - C

o
n
tin

u
u
m

 o
f C

a
re

 R
e
fo

rm

H
O

S
P

-H
o
s
p
ita

l

M
H

S
-M

e
n
ta

l H
e
a
lth

 S
p
e
c
ia

lty

45



S
ta

te
 o

f C
a
lifo

rn
ia

 H
e
a
lth

 a
n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y

D
e

p
a

rtm
e

n
to

fH
e

a
lth

C
a

re
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

D
E

T
A

IL
 C

O
S

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T

W
O

R
K

S
H

E
E

T
 F

O
R

 U
N

IT
S

 O
F

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
Y

 M
O

D
E

 A
N

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 F

U
N

C
T

IO
N

M
H

1
9
0
1
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L
E

 B
 0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
F

IS
C

A
L
Y

E
A

R
2
0
1
7
 - 2

0
1
8

E
n

tity N
a

m
e

 : C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

E
R

K
E

L
E

Y

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I
J

K
L

M
N

O
P

Q
R

S
T

U
V

W
X

Y
Z

S
e

ttle
m

e
n

t 

T
yp

e
M

o
d

e
S

F

T
o

ta
l U

n
its

 o
f 

S
e

rvic
e

S
D

/M
C

 U
n

its

M
e

d
i-

M
e

d
iC

ro
s
s
o

v

e
r U

n
its

S
D

/M
C

 3
rd

 

P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

C
h

ild
re

n
 

U
n

its
 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 

0
6

/3
0

/1
8

    

E
2

, E
4

, E
5

C
h

ild
re

n
 

U
n

its
 3

rd
 

P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

- 

0
6

/3
0

/1
8

 

E
2

,E
4

 E
5

C
h

ild
re

n
 

U
n

its
 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 

0
6

/3
0

/1
8

C
h

ild
re

n
 

U
n

its
 3

rd
 

P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

- 

0
6

/3
0

/1
8

 

B
C

C
T

P
 

U
n

its

B
C

C
T

P
 3

rd
 

P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y 

U
n

its

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y 

3
rd

 P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

R
e

fu
g

e
e

 

U
n

its

R
e

fu
g

e
e

 3
rd

 

P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 

C
a

re
 A

c
t 

U
n

its

3
rd

 P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 

C
a

re
 A

c
t 

U
n

its

3
rd

 P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

M
C

A
P

 U
n

its

3
rd

 P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

S
B

7
5

 U
n

its

S
B

7
5

 3
rd

 

P
a

rty 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

N
o

n
 M

e
d

i-

C
a

l U
n

its

M
e

d
iC

a
l fo

r a
ll C

h
ild

re
n

 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 C
a

re
 A

c
t 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 1
2

/3
1

/1
7

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 C
a

re
 A

c
t 

0
1

/0
1

/1
8

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

M
e

d
i-C

a
l  A

c
c

e
s

s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 (M

C
A

P
) 

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

C
R

-C
o
s
t R

e
im

b
u
rs

e
m

e
n
t

E
N

H
A

N
C

E
D

 F
M

A
P

 S
H

O
R

T
/D

O
Y

L
E

 M
E

D
I-C

A
L

 0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

A
L

L
 U

N
IT

S
 0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 F
M

A
P

 S
H

O
R

T
/D

O
Y

L
E

 M
E

D
I-

C
A

L
 0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8

S
e
ttle

m
e
n
t 

T
y
p
e
s

A
S

O
-A

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

rg
a
n
iz

a
tio

n

IS
A

-In
te

g
ra

te
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

g
e
n
c
y

T
B

S
-T

h
e
ra

p
e
u
tic

 B
e
h
a
v
io

ra
l S

e
rv

ic
e
s

M
A

A
-M

e
d
i-C

a
l A

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 A

c
tiv

itie
s

C
C

R
 - C

o
n
tin

u
u
m

 o
f C

a
re

 R
e
fo

rm

H
O

S
P

-H
o
s
p
ita

l

M
H

S
-M

e
n
ta

l H
e
a
lth

 S
p
e
c
ia

lty

6
1

                    
6

2
                    

6
3

                    
6

4
                    

6
5

                    
6

6
                    

6
7

                    
6

8
                    

6
9

                    
7

0
                    

7
1

                    
7

2
                    

7
3

                    
7

4
                    

7
5

                    
7

6
                    

7
7

                    
7

8
                    

7
9

                    
8

0
                    

8
1

                    
8

2
                    

8
3

                    
8

4
                    

T
o

ta
ls

P
rin

tT
h

is
R

o
w

1
,4

9
8

,4
1

4
        

8
3

1
,3

3
1

      
                    

2
4

,3
4

4
$

      
-

              
-

              
4

7
,1

9
9

        
               

-
              

               
-

              
               

-
              

-
$

            
4

0
,1

2
8

        
-

$
            

5
1

,2
0

2
        

-
$

            
-

              
-

$
            

-
              

-
$

            
5

2
8

,5
5

4
      

46



State of California Health and Human Services Agency Department of Health Care Services

DETAIL COST REPORT

MH1901 SCHEDULE C (Rev. 04/2018) FISCAL YEAR 2017 - 2018

Entity Name : CITY OF BERKELEY Entity Number : 00065

Fiscal Year: 2017 - 2018
COSTS TO BE ALLOCATED

Allowable Non-Hospital Mode Costs (MH1960 Line34,Col.J) 14,735,311                                             

2

A B C D E F G H I

Settlement 

Type Mode SF

Total

Units

Eligible Direct 

Cost Directly Allocated Data Relative Value

Allocation 

% Allocated Cost

C1 CR 15 01 184,872         1,260,827       15.34%        1,713,122                                               
C2 CR 15 10 67,861           475,706          5.79%          646,355                                                  
C3 CR 15 30 160,880         1,066,634       12.98%        1,449,267                                               
C4 CR 15 40 553,338         3,668,631       44.63%        4,984,673                                               
C5 CR 15 50 632               4,190             0.05%          5,693                                                     
C6 CR 15 60 122,438         1,660,259       20.20%        2,255,842                                               
C7 CR 15 70 13,375           83,728            1.02%          113,763                                                  
C8 CR 45 20 1                   1,144,187             -                                    1,144,187                                               
C9 CR 45 21 1                   10,814                  -                                    10,814                                                    
M10 MAA 55 01 92,549           161,006                                  -                                    161,006                                                  
M11 MAA 55 04 600               1,016                                      -                                    1,016                                                     
M12 MAA 55 10 30                 47                                           -                                    47                                                          
M13 MAA 55 11 90,305           159,045                                  -                                    159,045                                                  
M14 MAA 55 21 122,412         226,645                                  -                                    226,645                                                  
M15 MAA 55 27 46,300           87,782                                    -                                    87,782                                                    
M16 MAA 55 31 42,817           74,251                                    -                                    74,251                                                    
C17 CR 60 70 1                   14,500                  -                                    14,500                                                    
C18 CR 60 72 1                   292,469                -                                    292,469                                                  
C19 CR 60 75 1                   1,394,835             -                                    1,394,835                                               
0 20                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 21                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 22                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 23                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 24                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 25                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 26                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 27                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 28                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 29                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 30                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 31                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 32                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 33                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 34                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 35                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 36                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 37                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 38                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 39                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 40                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 41                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 42                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 43                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 44                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 45                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 46                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 47                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 48                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 49                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 50                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 51                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 52                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 53                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 54                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 55                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 56                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 57                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 58                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 59                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 60                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 61                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 62                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 63                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 64                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 65                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 66                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 67                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 68                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 69                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 70                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 71                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 72                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 73                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 74                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 75                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 76                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 77                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 78                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 79                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 80                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 81                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 82                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 83                          -                -                                    -                                                         
0 84                          -                -                                    -                                                         

1,498,414      2,856,805             709,792                                  8,219,975       100% 14,735,311                                             

Summary
.
.

Mode Allocated Cost Allocated % Settlement Type Allocated Cost Allocated Cost Allocated %

5 10-19                      0.00% TBS                                                   5 10-19                      0.00%

5 Other                      0.00% ASO                                                   5 Other                      0.00%

10                      0.00% MHS                                                   10                      0.00%

15 Program_1 11,168,714   75.80% Total                                                   15 Program_1                      0.00%

45 1,155,001     7.84% 45                      0.00%

55 709,792        4.82% 55                      0.00%

60 1,701,804     11.55% 60                      0.00%

Total 14,735,311   100.00% Total                      0.00%

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR THE METHOD USED TO ALLOCATE 

15 

Program_2

Hospital Costs

Allocation Basis

Non-Hospital Costs Non-Hospital Costs

OK

Allocation 

Rate for Allocation

Published Charges Directly Allocated

47



S
ta

te
 o

f C
a
lifo

rn
ia

 H
e
a
lth

 a
n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y

D
e
p
a
rtm

e
n
t o

f H
e
a
lth

 C
a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

D
E

T
A

IL
 C

O
S

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T

A
L

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 C

O
S

T
S

 T
O

 M
O

D
E

S
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
M

H
 1

9
6
4
 (R

e
v
. 0

4
/2

0
1
8
)

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
7
 - 2

0
1
8

C
o

u
n

ty
:

A
L

A
M

E
D

A
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

d
e

:
0

1

L
e

g
a

l E
n

tity
:

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

E
R

K
E

L
E

Y
L

e
g
a

l E
n

tity
 N

u
m

b
e

r:
0

0
0

6
5

1
M

o
d

e
 C

o
s
ts

 (D
ire

c
t S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 M

A
A

)
M

o
d

e
s

2
H

o
s
p

ita
l In

p
a

tie
n

t S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (M

o
d

e
 0

5
-S

F
C

 1
0

-1
9

)
3

O
th

e
r 2

4
 H

o
u

r S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (M

o
d

e
 0

5
-A

ll O
th

e
r S

F
C

)
4

D
a

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (M

o
d

e
 1

0
)

5
O

u
tp

a
tie

n
t S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (M

o
d

e
 1

5
 P

ro
g
ra

m
 1

 +
 P

ro
g
ra

m
 2

)
6

O
u

tre
a

c
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (M

o
d

e
 4

5
)

7
M

e
d

i-C
a

l A
d

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e

 A
c
tiv

itie
s
 (M

o
d

e
 5

5
)

8
S

u
p

p
o

rt S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (M

o
d

e
 6

0
)

C
rosscheck

9
T

o
ta

l - L
in

e
s
 2

 th
ro

u
g
h

 8
O

K
1

4
,7

3
5

,3
1

1
                                   

1
,7

0
1

,8
0

4
                                     

A

1
1

,1
6

8
,7

1
4

                                   
1

,1
5

5
,0

0
1

                                     
7

0
9

,7
9

2
                                        

1
4

,7
3

5
,3

1
1

                                   

                                                     
                                                     
                                                     

T
o

ta
l C

o
s

ts

48



S
ta

te
 o

f C
a
lifo

rn
ia

 H
e
a
lth

 a
n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 S

e
rvic

e
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y

D
e
p
a
rtm

e
n
t o

f H
e
a
lth

 C
a
re

 S
e
rvic

e
s

D
e
p
a
rtm

e
n
t o

f H
e
a
lth

 C
a
re

 S
e
rvic

e
s

D
e
p
a
rtm

e
n
t o

f H
e
a
lth

 C
a
re

 S
e
rvic

e
s

D
e
p
a
rtm

e
n
t o

f H
e
a
lth

 C
a
re

 S
e
rvic

e
s

D
e
p
a
rtm

e
n
t o

f H
e
a
lth

 C
a
re

 S
e
rvic

e
s

D
E

T
A

IL
 C

O
S

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T

ALLO
C

ATIO
N

 O
F C

O
STS TO

 SER
VIC

E
FU
N

C
TIO

N
S - M

O
D

E TO
TAL

P
A

G
E

 1
 O

F
 1

P
A

G
E

 2
 O

F
 1

P
A

G
E

 3
 O

F
 1

P
A

G
E

 4
 O

F
 1

P
A

G
E

 5
 O

F
 1

M
H

1
9
6
6
 (R

e
v. 0

4
/2

0
1
8
)

0
F

IS
C

A
L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
7
 - 2

0
1
8

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
7
 - 2

0
1
8

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
7
 - 2

0
1
8

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
7
 - 2

0
1
8

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
7
 - 2

0
1
8

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
o

u
n

ty
:

A
L
A

M
E

D
A

9
9

9
9

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
d

e
:

0
1

C
R

C
R

C
R

C
R

C
R

C
R

C
R

L
e

g
a

l E
n

tity
:

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

E
R

K
E

L
E

Y
A

B
C

D
E

F
G

H
I

J
K

L
M

N
O

P
Q

R
S

T
U

V
W

X
Y

Z
A

A
A

B
A

C
A

D
A

E
A

F
A

G
A

H
A

I
A

J
A

K
A

L
A

M
A

N
A

O
A

P
A

Q
A

R
A

S
A

T
A

U
A

V
A

W
A

X
A

Y
A

Z
B

A
B

B
B

C
B

D
B

E
B

F
B

G
B

H
B

I
B

J
B

K
B

L
B

M
B

N
B

O
B

P
B

Q
B

R
B

S
B

T
B

U
B

V
B

W
B

X
B

Y
B

Z
C

A

e
g

a
l E

n
tity

 N
u

m
b

e
r:

0
0
0
6
5

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

F
u

n
c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
U

s
e
d

 b
y p

rin
t m

a
c
ro

U
s
e
d

 b
y p

rin
t m

a
c
ro

U
s
e
d

 b
y p

rin
t m

a
c
ro

0
1

1
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

1
1
0
0
.0

0
%

 
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

 
1
5
.3

4
%

 
5
.7

9
%

 
1
2
.9

8
%

 
4
4
.6

3
%

 
0
.0

5
%

 
2
0
.2

0
%

 
1
.0

2
%

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
1
8
4
,8

7
2

 
6
7
,8

6
1

 
1
6
0
,8

8
0

 
5
5
3
,3

3
8

 
6
3
2

 
1
2
2
,4

3
8

 
1
3
,3

7
5

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
1
1
,1

6
8
,7

1
4

 
 

1
1
,1

6
8
,7

1
4

 
1
,7

1
3
,1

2
2

 
6
4
6
,3

5
5

 
1
,4

4
9
,2

6
7

 
4
,9

8
4
,6

7
3

 
5
,6

9
3

 
2
,2

5
5
,8

4
2

 
1
1
3
,7

6
3

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

4
9
.2

7
 

9
.5

2
 

9
.0

1
 

9
.0

1
 

9
.0

1
 

1
8
.4

2
 

8
.5

1
 

5
6
.8

2
 

7
.0

1
 

6
.6

3
 

6
.6

3
 

6
.6

3
 

1
3
.5

6
 

6
.2

6
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6
0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
1
0
1
,8

0
9

 
4
6
,9

2
5

 
1
1
4
,1

6
9

 
4
4
9
,3

6
9

 
 

1
0
9
,2

7
9

 
9
,7

8
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

7
0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
8

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
9

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
1
,7

3
5

 
9
,4

6
9

 
8
,9

5
7

 
2
5
,7

4
2

 
4
6
6

 
 

8
3
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
0

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (B

C
C

T
P

) U
n
its

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
1

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 U

n
its

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
2

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (R

e
fu

g
e
e
s
) U

n
its

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
3

A
ffo

rd
a
b
le

 C
a
re

 A
c
t U

n
its

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 1

2
/3

1
/1

7
1
0
,7

6
2

 
3
9
5

 
7
,3

9
9

 
1
7
,5

2
0

 
 

3
,0

4
2

 
1
,0

1
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
4

A
ffo

rd
a
b
le

 C
a
re

 A
c
t U

n
its

0
1
/0

1
/1

8
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
2
2
,5

6
5

 
8
2
0

 
8
,3

9
9

 
1
5
,4

0
7

 
 

2
,6

7
1

 
1
,3

4
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
5

M
e
d
iC

a
l fo

r a
ll C

h
ild

re
n
 (S

B
7
5
) U

n
its

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
6

M
e
d
i-C

a
l  A

c
c
e
s
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
 (M

C
A

P
)

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1
7

N
o
n
-M

e
d
i-C

a
l U

n
its

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
4
8
,0

0
1

 
1
0
,2

5
2

 
2
1
,9

5
6

 
4
5
,3

0
0

 
1
6
6

 
7
,4

4
6

 
4
1
5

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
8

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
8
,5

6
3
,5

0
1

 
 

8
,5

6
3
,5

0
1

 
9
4
3
,4

1
6

 
4
4
6
,9

4
6

 
1
,0

2
8
,4

7
7

 
4
,0

4
8
,0

8
2

 
 

2
,0

1
3
,3

9
5

 
8
3
,1

8
5

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
9

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
6
,3

0
2
,5

8
5

 
 

6
,3

0
2
,5

8
5

 
6
9
4
,3

3
7

 
3
2
8
,9

4
4

 
7
5
6
,9

4
0

 
2
,9

7
9
,3

1
6

 
 

1
,4

8
1
,8

2
3

 
6
1
,2

2
3

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
0

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
1

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
2

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
3

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
4

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
4
3
0
,1

0
6

 
 

4
3
0
,1

0
6

 
1
6
,0

7
7

 
9
0
,1

8
9

 
8
0
,6

8
8

 
2
3
1
,8

9
3

 
4
,1

9
8

 
 

7
,0

6
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
5

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
3
1
6
,5

5
0

 
 

3
1
6
,5

5
0

 
1
1
,8

3
3

 
6
6
,3

7
8

 
5
9
,3

8
5

 
1
7
0
,6

6
9

 
3
,0

9
0

 
 

5
,1

9
6

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
6

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
7

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
8

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
) C

o
s
ts

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
9

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
) P

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
0

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (R

e
fu

g
e
e
s
) C

o
s
ts

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
1

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (R

e
fu

g
e
e
s
) P

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
2

A
ffo

rd
a
b
le

 C
a
re

 A
c
t C

o
s
ts

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 1

2
/3

1
/1

7
3
9
2
,6

0
6

 
 

3
9
2
,6

0
6

 
9
9
,7

2
6

 
3
,7

6
2

 
6
6
,6

5
3

 
1
5
7
,8

2
7

 
 

5
6
,0

4
7

 
8
,5

9
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
3

A
ffo

rd
a
b
le

 C
a
re

 A
c
t P

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 1

2
/3

1
/1

7
2
8
8
,9

5
1

 
 

2
8
8
,9

5
1

 
7
3
,3

9
7

 
2
,7

6
9

 
4
9
,0

5
5

 
1
1
6
,1

5
8

 
 

4
1
,2

5
0

 
6
,3

2
3

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
4

A
ffo

rd
a
b
le

 C
a
re

 A
c
t C

o
s
ts

0
1
/0

1
/1

8
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
4
9
1
,9

7
2

 
 

4
9
1
,9

7
2

 
2
0
9
,0

9
9

 
7
,8

1
0

 
7
5
,6

6
1

 
1
3
8
,7

9
2

 
 

4
9
,2

1
1

 
1
1
,3

9
8

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
5

A
ffo

rd
a
b
le

 C
a
re

 A
c
t P

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

0
1
/0

1
/1

8
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
3
6
2
,0

8
2

 
 

3
6
2
,0

8
2

 
1
5
3
,8

9
3

 
5
,7

4
8

 
5
5
,6

8
5

 
1
0
2
,1

4
8

 
 

3
6
,2

1
9

 
8
,3

8
8

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
6

M
e
d
iC

a
l fo

r a
ll C

h
ild

re
n
 (S

B
7
5
) C

o
s
ts

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
7

M
e
d
iC

a
l fo

r a
ll C

h
ild

re
n
 (S

B
7
5
) P

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
8

M
e
d
i-C

a
l  A

c
c
e
s
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
 (M

C
A

P
) C

o
s
ts

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
9

M
e
d
i-C

a
l  A

c
c
e
s
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
 (M

C
A

P
) P

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

4
0

N
o
n
-M

e
d
i-C

a
l C

o
s
ts

0
7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
1
,2

9
0
,5

3
0

 
 

1
,2

9
0
,5

3
0

 
4
4
4
,8

0
3

 
9
7
,6

4
7

 
1
9
7
,7

8
8

 
4
0
8
,0

7
9

 
1
,4

9
5

 
1
3
7
,1

8
8

 
3
,5

3
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (C

h
ild

re
n
) C

o
s
ts

 E
2
, E

4
, E

5

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (C

h
ild

re
n
) P

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (B

C
C

T
P

) P
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

M
e
d
ic

a
re

/M
e
d
i-C

a
l C

ro
s
s
o
ve

r C
o
s
ts

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (B

C
C

T
P

) C
o
s
ts

M
e
d
ic

a
re

/M
e
d
i-C

a
l C

ro
s
s
o
ve

r P
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (C

h
ild

re
n
) C

o
s
ts

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (C

h
ild

re
n
) P

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 E

2
, E

4
, E

5

C
o
s
t p

e
r U

n
it

P
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
 p

e
r U

n
it

M
e
d
i-C

a
l P

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

M
e
d
i-C

a
l C

o
s
ts

M
e
d
i-C

a
l U

n
its

M
e
d
ic

a
re

/M
e
d
i-C

a
l C

ro
s
s
o
ve

r U
n
its

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (C

h
ild

re
n
) U

n
its

 E
2
, E

4
, E

5
E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

D
/M

C
 (C

h
ild

re
n
) U

n
its

M
o

d
e

:

G
ro

s
s
 C

o
s
t

M
o

d
e

 T
o

ta
l

A
llo

c
a
tio

n
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

T
o
ta

l U
n
its

 

1
5
 - O

u
tp

a
tie

n
t S

e
rv

ic
e

s (P
ro

g
ra

m
 1

)
N

o
n

-H
o

sp
ita

l

M
o

d
e

 T
o

ta
l

H
o

sp
ita

l

M
o

d
e

 T
o

ta
l

49



S
ta

te
 o

f C
a
lifo

rn
ia

 H
e
a
lth

 a
n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y

D
e
p
a
rtm

e
n
t o

f H
e
a
lth

 C
a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

D
E

T
A

IL
 C

O
S

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T

P
A

G
E

 1
 O

F
 1

M
H

1
9
6
6
 (R

e
v
. 0

4
/2

0
1
8
)

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
7
 - 2

0
1
8

A
L

A
M

E
D

A
1

9
2

7
2

8
0

0
0

0

0
1

C
R

C
R

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

E
R

K
E

L
E

Y
A

B
C

D
E

F
 

G
0

0
0

6
5

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

M
o

d
e

 T
o

ta
l

F
u

n
c

tio
n

F
u

n
c

tio
n

F
u

n
c

tio
n

F
u

n
c

tio
n

F
u

n
c

tio
n

F
u

n
c

tio
n

2
0

2
1

1
1

0
0

.0
0

%
 

9
9

.0
6

%
 

0
.9

4
%

 
 

 
 

 
2

1
 

1
 

 
 

 
 

3
1

,1
5

5
,0

0
1

 
1

,1
4

4
,1

8
7

 
1

0
,8

1
4

 
 

 
 

 

4
1
,1

4
4
,1

8
7
.0

5
 

1
0

,8
1

4
.0

0
 

 
 

 
 

5
1

 
1

 
 

 
 

 
N

o
n

-M
e

d
i-C

a
l U

n
its

M
o

d
e

:
4

5
 - O

u
tre

a
c

h
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

G
ro

s
s
 C

o
s
t

A
llo

c
a

tio
n

 P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

T
o

ta
l U

n
its

 

A
L

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 C

O
S

T
S

 T
O

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
S

 - M
O

D
E

 T
O

T
A

L

C
o

s
t p

e
r U

n
it

C
o

u
n

ty
:

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
d

e
:

L
e

g
a

l E
n

tity
:

L
e

g
a

l E
n

tity
 N

u
m

b
e

r:

50



S
ta

te
 o

f C
a
lifo

rn
ia

 H
e
a
lth

 a
n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y

D
e
p
a
rtm

e
n
t o

f H
e
a
lth

 C
a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

D
E

T
A

IL
 C

O
S

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T

P
A

G
E

 1
 O

F
 2

M
H

1
9
6
6
 (R

e
v
. 0

4
/2

0
1
8
)

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
7
 - 2

0
1
8

A
L

A
M

E
D

A
1
9

2
9

3
0

3
1

3
2

3
3

3
4

0
1

M
A

A
M

A
A

M
A

A
M

A
A

M
A

A
M

A
A

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

E
R

K
E

L
E

Y
A

B
C

D
E

F
 

G
0

0
0

6
5

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

M
o

d
e

:
5

5
 - M

e
d

i-C
a

l A
d

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e

 A
c

tiv
itie

s
M

o
d

e
 T

o
ta

l
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n

0
1

0
4

1
0

1
1

2
1

2
7

1
1

0
0

.0
0

%
 

2
2

.6
8

%
 

0
.1

4
%

 
0

.0
1

%
 

2
2

.4
1

%
 

3
1

.9
3

%
 

1
2

.3
7

%
 

2
9

2
,5

4
9

 
6

0
0

 
3

0
 

9
0

,3
0

5
 

1
2

2
,4

1
2

 
4

6
,3

0
0

 
3

7
0

9
,7

9
2

 
1

6
1

,0
0

6
 

1
,0

1
6

 
4

7
 

1
5

9
,0

4
5

 
2

2
6

,6
4

5
 

8
7

,7
8

2
 

4
1

.7
4

 
1

.6
9

 
1

.5
7

 
1

.7
6

 
1

.8
5

 
1

.9
0

 

5
5

5
,2

7
1

 

L
e

g
a

l E
n

tity
 N

u
m

b
e

r:

A
L

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 C

O
S

T
S

 T
O

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
S

 - M
O

D
E

 T
O

T
A

L

C
o

u
n

ty
:

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
d

e
:

L
e

g
a

l E
n

tity
:

N
o

n
-M

e
d

i-C
a

l C
o

s
ts

A
llo

c
a

tio
n

 P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

T
o

ta
l U

n
its

 
T

o
ta

l E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
s

C
o

s
t p

e
r U

n
it

51



S
ta

te
 o

f C
a
lifo

rn
ia

 H
e
a
lth

 a
n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y

D
e
p
a
rtm

e
n
t o

f H
e
a
lth

 C
a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

D
E

T
A

IL
 C

O
S

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T

P
A

G
E

 1
 O

F
 1

M
H

 1
9
6
6
 (R

e
v
. 0

4
/2

0
1
8
)

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
7
 - 2

0
1
8

A
L

A
M

E
D

A
1

9
3

6
3

7
3

8
0

0
0

0
1

C
R

C
R

C
R

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

E
R

K
E

L
E

Y
A

B
C

D
E

F
 

G
0

0
0

6
5

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

6
0

 - S
u

p
p

o
rt S

e
rv

ic
e

s
M

o
d

e
 T

o
ta

l
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n
F

u
n

c
tio

n

7
0

7
2

7
5

1
1

0
0

.0
0

%
 

0
.8

5
%

 
1

7
.1

9
%

 
8

1
.9

6
%

 
 

 
 

2
1

 
1

 
1

 
 

 
 

3
1

,7
0

1
,8

0
4

 
1

4
,5

0
0

 
2

9
2

,4
6

9
 

1
,3

9
4

,8
3

5
 

 
 

 

4
1

4
,5

0
0

.0
0

 
2

9
2

,4
6

9
.0

8
 

1
,3

9
4
,8

3
5
.0

0
 

 
 

 

5
1

 
1

 
1

 
 

 
 

6
1

,7
0

1
,8

0
4

 
1

4
,5

0
0

 
2

9
2

,4
6

9
 

1
,3

9
4

,8
3

5
 

 
 

 

L
e

g
a

l E
n

tity
 N

u
m

b
e

r:

N
o

n
-M

e
d

i-C
a

l U
n

its
 (S

a
m

e
 a

s
 L

in
e

 2
)

A
L

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 C

O
S

T
S

 T
O

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
S

 - M
O

D
E

 T
O

T
A

L

C
o

u
n

ty
:

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
d

e
:

L
e

g
a

l E
n

tity
:

N
o

n
-M

e
d

i-C
a

l C
o

s
ts

 (S
a

m
e

 a
s
 L

in
e

 3
)

M
o

d
e

:

A
llo

c
a

tio
n

 P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

T
o

ta
l U

n
its

 
G

ro
s
s
 C

o
s
t

C
o

s
t p

e
r U

n
it

52



S
ta

te
 o

f C
a

lifo
rn

ia
 H

e
a

lth
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y

D
E

T
A

IL
 C

O
S

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
S

D
/M

C
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 D
E

S
K

 S
E

T
T

L
E

M
E

N
T

M
H

 1
9

7
9

 (R
e

v
. 0

4
/2

0
1

8
)

A
L

A
M

E
D

A
0

1

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

E
R

K
E

L
E

Y
A

B
C

D
E

F
 

G
H

I
J

K

0
0

0
6

5
T

o
ta

l
T

o
ta

l
T

o
ta

l
5

0
.0

0
%

5
0

.0
0

%
1V

a
ria

b
le

 %
7

5
.0

0
%

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

T
o

ta
l

T
o

ta
l

M
A

A
In

p
a

tie
n

t
O

u
tp

a
tie

n
t

T
o

ta
l

F
F

P
F

F
P

F
F

P
F

F
P

to
 F

F
P

F
F

P
S

G
F

1
                       

                       
                       

2
                       

                       
                       

3
                       

4
                       

5
                       

6
                       

                       
7

                       
                       

                       

8
C

o
u

n
ty

 S
D

/M
C

 E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 (C

h
ild

re
n

) D
ire

c
t S

e
rv

ic
e

 G
ro

s
s
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

                       
                       

                       
9

C
o

n
tra

c
t P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 S
D

/M
C

 E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 (C

h
ild

re
n

) D
ire

c
t S

e
rv

ic
e

 G
ro

s
s
 R

e
im

                       
                       

                       
1

0
T

o
ta

l S
D

/M
C

 E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 (C

h
ild

re
n

) D
ire

c
t S

e
rv

ic
e

 G
ro

s
s
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

                       
1

1
S

D
/M

C
 E

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 (C

h
ild

re
n

) A
d

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e

 R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t L
im

it
                       

1
2

S
D

/M
C

 E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 (C

h
ild

re
n

) A
d

m
in

is
tra

tio
n

                       
1

3
S

D
/M

C
 E

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 (C

h
ild

re
n

) A
d

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e

 R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t
                       

                       
                       

1
4

1
6

2
,0

2
2

     
1

6
2

,0
2

2
          

8
1

,0
1

1
            

                       
8

1
,0

1
1

            
1

5
2

0
9

,7
7

4
     

2
0

9
,7

7
4

          
1

0
4

,8
8

7
          

                       
1

0
4

,8
8

7
          

1
6

2
8

2
,7

2
5

     
2

8
2

,7
2

5
          

2
1

2
,0

4
4

          
2

1
2

,0
4

4
          

1
7

                       
                       

                       
1

8
                       

                       
                       

1
9

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

                       
6

,2
7

8
,2

4
1

      
6

,2
7

8
,2

4
1

      
3

,1
3

9
,1

2
0

      
                       

3
,1

3
9

,1
2

0
      

                       

2
0

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

                       
                       

                       
                       

                       
                       

                       

2
1

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

                       
3

1
6

,5
5

0
          

3
1

6
,5

5
0

          
2

7
8

,5
6

4
          

                       
2

7
8

,5
6

4
          

                       
2

2
0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
                       

                       
                       

                       
                       

                       
                       

2
3

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

                       
                       

                       
                       

                       
                       

                       
2

4
E

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 S

D
/M

C
 N

e
t R

e
im

b
. (R

e
fu

g
e

e
s
)

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

                       
                       

                       
                       

                       
                       

2
5

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 C
a

re
 A

c
t (A

C
A

) N
e

t R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t
0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 1

2
/3

1
/1

7
                       

2
8

8
,9

5
1

          
2

8
8

,9
5

1
          

2
7

4
,5

0
3

          
                       

2
7

4
,5

0
3

          
1

4
,4

4
8

            
2

5
A

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 C
a

re
 A

c
t (A

C
A

) N
e

t R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t
0

1
/0

1
/1

8
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
                       

3
6

2
,0

8
2

          
3

6
2

,0
8

2
          

3
4

0
,3

5
7

          
                       

3
4

0
,3

5
7

          
2

1
,7

2
5

            
2

6
0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
                       

                       
                       

                       
                       

                       
                       

2
7

T
o

ta
l S

D
/M

C
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t B

e
fo

re
 E

x
c
e

s
s
 F

F
P

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

4
,4

3
0

,4
8

7
      

O
th

e
r S

D
/M

C
 U

tiliz
a

tio
n

 R
e

v
ie

w
 (C

o
u

n
ty

 O
n

ly
)

S
D

/M
C

 N
e

t R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t fo
r D

ire
c
t S

e
rv

ic
e

s

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 S

D
/M

C
 N

e
t R

e
im

b
. (C

h
ild

re
n

) E
2

, E
4

, E
5

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 S

D
/M

C
 N

e
t R

e
im

b
. (B

C
C

T
P

)
E

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 S

D
/M

C
 N

e
t R

e
im

b
. (P

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
)

M
C

A
P

 N
e

t R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 S

D
/M

C
 N

e
t R

e
im

b
. (C

h
ild

re
n

)

M
e

d
i-C

a
l A

d
m

in
. A

c
tiv

itie
s
 S

v
c
 F

u
n

c
tio

n
s
 2

1
 - 2

9
 (C

o
u

n
ty

 O
n

ly
)

U
tiliz

a
tio

n
 R

e
v
ie

w
-S

k
ille

d
 P

ro
f. M

e
d

. P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l (C

o
u

n
ty

 O
n

ly
)

S
D

/M
C

 N
e

t R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t fo
r M

A
A

M
e

d
i-C

a
l A

d
m

in
. A

c
tiv

itie
s
 S

v
c
 F

u
n

c
tio

n
s
 0

1
 - 0

9
 

M
e

d
i-C

a
l A

d
m

in
. A

c
tiv

itie
s
 S

v
c
 F

u
n

c
tio

n
s
 1

1
 - 1

9
, 3

1
 - 3

9
 

S
D

/M
C

 E
n

h
a

n
c

e
d

 (C
h

ild
re

n
) A

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t (C

o
u

n
ty

 O
n

ly
)

M
e

d
i-C

a
l A

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

ty
 S

D
/M

C
 O

th
e

r D
ire

c
t S

e
rv

ic
e

 G
ro

s
s
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

n
tra

c
t P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 O
th

e
r M

e
d

i-C
a

l D
ire

c
t S

e
rv

ic
e

 G
ro

s
s
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

u
n

ty
:

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
d

e
:

L
e

g
a

l E
n

tity
:

L
e

g
a

l E
n

tity
 N

u
m

b
e

r:

S
D

/M
C

 O
th

e
r A

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t (C

o
u

n
ty

 O
n

ly
)

T
o

ta
l M

e
d

i-C
a

l D
ire

c
t S

e
rv

ic
e

 G
ro

s
s
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

M
e

d
i-C

a
l A

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t L

im
it 

M
e

d
i-C

a
l A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

C
o

n
tin

u
u

m
 o

f C
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 A

d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
 

53



M
H

_
1

9
7

9
B

 (R
e

v
. 0

4
/2

0
1

8
)

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1

7
 - 2

0
1

8

A
L

A
M

E
D

A

0
1

A
B

C
D

E

C
o

u
n

ty
C

o
n

tra
c

t P
ro

v
id

e
rs

T
o

ta
l

F
M

A
P

F
F

P

1
                            

                     
50%

                     
2

S
D

/M
C

 E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 (C

h
ild

re
n

) A
d

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e

 R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t
                            

                     
50%

                     
3

162,022
               

                                       
162,022

        
50%

81,011
          

4
209,774

               
209,774

        
50%

104,887
        

5
282,725

               
282,725

        
75%

212,044
        

6
                            

                     
75%

                     
7

                            
                     

50%
                     

8
S

D
/M

C
 N

e
t R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t fo

r D
ire

c
t S

e
rv

ic
e

s
0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
6,278,241

            
                                       

6,278,241
     

50%
3,139,120

     
9

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

                            
                                       

                     
65%

-
                

1
0

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

316,550
               

                                       
316,550

        
88%

278,564
        

1
1

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

                            
                                       

                     
65%

                     
1

2
0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
                            

                                       
                     

65%
                     

1
3

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 S

D
/M

C
 N

e
t R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t (R

e
fu

g
e

e
s
)

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

                            
                                       

                     
100%

                     
1

4
0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 1

2
/3

1
/1

7
288,951

               
                                       

288,951
        

95%
274,503

        
1

5
0

1
/0

1
/1

8
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
362,082

               
                                       

362,082
        

94%
340,357

        
1

6
0

7
/0

1
/1

7
 - 0

6
/3

0
/1

8
                            

                                       
                     

88%
-

                
1

7
T

o
ta

l S
h

o
rt/D

o
y
le

 M
e

d
i-C

a
l R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

0
7

/0
1

/1
7

 - 0
6

/3
0

/1
8

7,900,345
            

                                       
7,900,345

     
4,430,487

     

T
o

ta
l C

e
rtifie

d
 P

u
b

lic
 E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
s

 (C
P

E
)

O
th

e
r S

D
/M

C
 U

tiliz
a

tio
n

 R
e

v
ie

w

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 S

D
/M

C
 N

e
t R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t (B

C
C

T
P

)

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 S

D
/M

C
 N

e
t R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t (P

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
)

M
e

d
i-C

a
l A

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t 

S
h

o
rt/D

o
y
le

 M
e

d
i-C

a
l

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 S

D
/M

C
 N

e
t R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t (C

h
ild

re
n

) E
2

, E
4

, E
5

U
tiliz

a
tio

n
 R

e
v
ie

w
-S

k
ille

d
 P

ro
f. M

e
d

. P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l (S

P
M

P
)

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 S

D
/M

C
 N

e
t R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t (C

h
ild

re
n

) 

C
o

u
n

ty
:

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
d

e
:

M
e

d
i-C

a
l A

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 A

c
tiv

itie
s
 (S

v
c
 F

u
n

c
tio

n
s
 0

1
 - 0

9
)

M
e

d
i-C

a
l A

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 A

c
tiv

itie
s
 (S

v
c
 F

u
n

c
tio

n
s
 1

1
 - 1

9
, 3

1
 - 3

9
 )

M
e

d
i-C

a
l A

d
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
 A

c
tiv

itie
s
 (S

v
c
 F

u
n

c
tio

n
s
 2

1
 - 2

9
)

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 C
a

re
 A

c
t (A

C
A

) N
e

t R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t
A

ffo
rd

a
b

le
 C

a
re

 A
c
t (A

C
A

) N
e

t R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t
M

C
A

P
 N

e
t R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

54



S
ta

te
 o

f C
a
lifo

rn
ia

 H
e
a
lth

 a
n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y

D
e
p
a
rtm

e
n
t o

f H
e
a
lth

 C
a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

D
E

T
A

IL
 C

O
S

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T

F
U

N
D

IN
G

 S
O

U
R

C
E

S

M
H

 1
9
9
2
 (R

e
v
. 4

/1
8
)

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
7
 - 2

0
1
8

C
o
u
n
ty

:
A

L
A

M
E

D
A

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
d
e
:

0
1

Legal Entity:
C

ITY
 O

F B
ER

K
ELEY

A
 

B
C

D
E

F
G

H
I

J
Legal Entity N

o.:
00065

D
irect Services/M

A
A

M
ode 05

M
ode 05

M
ode 10

M
ode 15

M
ode 45

M
ode 55

M
ode 60

 H
ospital 

Inpatient 
 O

ther 24 H
our 

Services 
 D

ay 
Services 

 O
utpatient

Services 
 O

utreach
Services 

M
A

A
 Support
Services 

C
R

O
SSC

H
E

C
K

S
1

                         
                         

                         
                         

                         
11,168,714

       
1,155,001

         
709,792

            
1,701,804

         
14,735,311

       
2

                         
3

                         
                         

                         
                         

                         
11,168,714

       
1,155,001

         
709,792

            
1,701,804

         
14,735,311

       
O

K

4
                         

5
                         

6
                         

7
10,814

              
10,814

              
8

                         
                         

                         
                         

                         
                         

10,814
              

                         
10,814

              
O

K
9

3,067
                

3,067
                

10
                         

11
Federal ID

EA
 funds

                         
12

                         
13

                         
                         

                         
                         

                         
4,032,545

         
397,942

            
4,430,487

         
O

K
 M

H
1979 SD

M
C

 M
A

T
C

H
14

21,277
              

21,277
              

15
                         

16
149,187

            
149,187

            
17

                         
18

                         
19

3,213,201
         

311,850
            

3,525,051
         

20
                         

21
3,713,264

         
1,144,187

         
1,701,804

         
6,559,255

         
22

                         
23

                         
27

State G
eneral Fund

                         
                         

                         
28

                         
                         

                         
                         

                         
29

                         
                         

                         
14,448

              
14,448

              
O

K
 M

H
1979 SD

M
C

 M
A

T
C

H
30

 A
C

A
 (6%

 SG
F) - 01/01/18 - 06/30/18

                         
                         

                         
21,725

              
21,725

              
31

                         
                         

                         
                         

                         
11,168,714

       
1,155,001

         
709,792

            
1,701,804

         
14,735,311

       
O

K
C

R
O

S
S

C
H

E
C

K
S

Line 3 = Line 31
O

K
O

K
O

K
O

K
O

K
O

K
O

K
O

K
O

K
O

K

A
m

t. to B
alance to Line 3:

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2011 R
ealignm

ent

M
H

SA

Total Funding Sources

C
ounty O

verm
atch

SB
75 R

evenue - 07/01/17 - 06/30/18
A

C
A

 (5%
 SG

F) - 07/01/17 - 12/31/17

 Total 
Legal 
Entity 

C
A

LW
O

R
K

S

16-17 SG
F R

ollover

1991 R
ealignm

ent Funds and M
O

E

A
djustm

ents 

    PA
TH

 G
rants

    R
W

J G
rants

Prior Y
ears M

H
SA

Patient Insurance

M
edicare - Fed. Share

R
egular/Enhanced SD

/M
C

 (FFP only)

C
onservatorship A

dm
in. Fees

O
ther R

evenue

Patient Fees

Low
 Incom

e H
ealth Program

 (LIH
P) FFP

    O
ther G

rants
Total G

rants A
ccrued

A
dm

inistration
 U

tilization
R

eview
 

G
ross C

ost

G
rants

    SA
M

H
SA

 G
rants

Funding Sources
A

djusted G
ross C

ost

55



MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION 
2/2019 SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATE* 

Subcommittee Date 
Formed 

Current 
Subcommittee Members 

Meetings 
Held/or Scheduled 

Accountability Subcommittee 
(Originally named the 
Fiscal/Programmatic/Accountability 
Subcommittee) 

10/26/17 Cheema, Davila, Fine 11/30/17 
2/15/18 
4/13/18 
7/19/18 

10/17/18 
12/7/18 
2/22/19 

Diversity Subcommittee 4/26/18 Castro, Fine, Lubke 5/15/18 
7/24/18 
8/21/18 
9/18/18 

10/18/18 
11/19/18 
1/17/19 
2/19/19 

Site Visit Subcommittee 4/26/18 Castro, cheema, Kealoha-
Blake, Posey 

5/21/18 
7/19/18 
8/21/18 

11/19/18 
1/17/19 

Membership Subcommittee 12/13/18 Heda, Fine, Posey 1/17/19 
2/20/19 

*As of February 2019

56



Police Use of Restraint Devices—Spit Hoods—to Respond to 
People Experiencing Severe Mental Illness and/or Substance Use Disorder Crises 
margaretcarolefine©2019. all rights reserved. 
 
 
The Berkeley Police Department is often called as a first responder to individuals who are 
experiencing severe mental illness and/or substance use disorder crises in the community. In 
Berkeley, the number of police calls for people having a mental health crisis is 35 percent or 
more (Dinkelspeil, Berkeleyside; 2015). Over the past 5 years, police have seen a 43 percent 
increase in calls for 5150s or people who are a danger to themselves or others (Dinkelspeil, 
Berkeleyside, 2015). As a result, the Berkeley Police Department has committed resources to 
address those individuals as first responders with crisis inventions and not force, coercion and 
punishment in the line of duty. 
 
Specifically, the Berkeley Police Department (BPD) specially trains police officers to use crisis 
intervention responses; the Department has a Crisis Intervention Team. Further, the BPD has a 
formal partnership with the Division of Mental Health for the Cities of Berkeley and Albany to 
serve these individuals who need first responders to assist them during crises. Both the Police 
Department and this Division provide multiple details for coordinated crisis intervention 
response on their websites, as well as listing other resources.  
 
It is evident the BPD and the Division of Mental Health are designed to work in tandem to 
respond in these types of crises. Overall BPD serves adults with severe mental illness and 
substance use disorder who are served by the Adult Clinic of the Division of Mental Health for 
the Cities of Berkeley and Albany—the public mental health system (“Berkeley Mental Health”). 
 
Currently, however, the BPD is reconsidering the use of restraint devices—spit hoods—as an 
option to address people who engage in spitting and biting during a police encounter.  For 
people needing crisis intervention services in the community, the use of this restraint device 
can violate their human and civil rights and cause psychological and physical harms. In fact, it 
may escalate crises. Additionally, some individuals living with severe mental illness and 
substance use disorder may also live primarily in public spaces so they are more exposed to 
policing than people who can afford to live in privacy—in part or whole. 
 
Most important, human and civil rights can be violated when police use restraint devices in 
these types of crises to control or coerce people into police custody. It may violate of the 
United Nations Convention on Torture, and Other Inhuman, Cruel and Degrading Treatment or 
Punishment (UNCAT). Amnesty International has publicly commented on how use of spit hoods 
can violate this international treaty’s formal guidelines. The use of spit hoods may further 
violate the United Nations Convention on the Rights of People with Disabilities.  
 
 
 

57



Police Use of Restraint Devices—Spit Hoods—to Respond to 
People with Severe Mental Illness and/or Substance Use Disorder in the Community 
margaretcarolfine©2019. all rights reserved. 
 
 
Using restraint devices such as spit hoods may have a disproportionate and discriminatory 
impact on minorities who are experiencing severe mental illness and/or substance use disorder 
living in the community. Their use can possibly violate the exercise of civil rights and/or result in 
discriminatory treatment towards them under civil rights law. It is also notable that mental 
illness and substance use disorder can both manifest as psychosis to where the diagnoses are 
indistinguishable and thus, may invoke disability rights protections. 
 
Third, there is the likelihood individuals will be traumatized by a devastating experience of 
police covering their head with a restraint device; it can create alarming fear, distress, panic 
and humiliation. There is also risk of serious injuries or death (such as asphyxiation). Using both 
restraint devices—spit hoods and hand cuffs—can further injure an individual. 
 
Historically, this restraint device has been used in perpetuating extreme human brutality, 
systemic oppression and monstrous human atrocities. Its use today can immediately traumatize 
individuals, as well as perpetuate and reinforce generational trauma and horrifying symbolism, 
especially considering its use against minorities to degrade, torture and execute. 
 
Police claim there is a need to protect their health from individuals who spit and bite and the 
use of restraint devices like spit hoods will keep them safe. In this regard, there must be an 
evidence-based approach by city government to justify overriding any human or civil rights 
violations and likely psychological and physical harms. People living with severe mental illness 
and substance use disorder are likely more vulnerable than others without disabilities. 
 
The systematic literature review of scientific studies addressing transmission of HIV and 
Hepititis B and C from spitting and biting can serve as an evidenced-based approach to 
determining the level of risk, if any, from these types of behaviors. First, a systematic review of 
studies concluded the risk of transmitting HIV through spitting as no risk, and further concluded 
the risk through biting as negligible (Cresswell, et al; 2018; 1).  
 
In addition, a systematic literature review of Hepatitis C and B transmission concluded the risk 
of acquiring Hepititis C (HCV) through spitting as negligible and as very low for Hepititis B 
(HBV)(Pintillie & Brooks, 2018; 1). This review also showed the risk as low for acquiring HBV and 
HCV through biting (Pintillie & Brooks, 2018; 1). It is notable that the former study on HIV 
focused on police, while the later study addressed emergency workers. 
 
 
 
 

58



Police Use of Restraint Devices—Spit Hoods—to Respond to 
People with Severe Mental Illness and/or Substance Use Disorder in the Community 
margaretcarolfine©2019. all rights reserved. 
 
 
Overall it is considerably more important to preserve human and civil rights when an evidence-
based approach shows this result and there is likely an alternative to using these restraint 
devices against people experiencing severe mental illness and substance use disorder crises. 
There are face guards that police can choose to use. Emergency medical and mental health 
workers may use them in assisting people experiencing these crises and in other roles. 
 
In some localities, mental health clinicians are first responders who accompany police to assist 
individuals experiencing severe mental health and substance use disorder crises in the 
community. The aim again is not to use force, coercion and/or punishment. If anything, the use 
of restraint devices like spit hoods may result in more severe harms as here is no visual ability 
to observe individual’s face and head while in crisis. 
 
For these reasons, the Berkeley Police Department should not use restraint devices like spit 
hoods in the line of duty. Thank you for your time. 
 
 

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



 
 

MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION 
for the 

 CITIES OF BERKELEY and ALBANY 
 

Is Seeking Candidates to Join the Commission 
 

The Mental Health Commission (MHC) is comprised of 13 residents who advise the 
Division of Mental Health for the Cities of Berkeley and Albany and the Berkeley City 
Council on mental health in the community. This Division has an approximate annual 
budget of $13-14 million, including funding for a new Adult Clinic.  
 

• There are 11 Mental Health Commissioners from the City of Berkeley and 2 from 
the City of Albany. One member represents the City of Berkeley Mayor’s Office. 

 

• Under California law, the Commission members is comprised of special and 
general public interest categories except for the Mayor’s appointment. 
 

Here are the details on the vacancies: 
 

• Special Public Interest Vacancies 
 

There are vacancies for City of Berkeley residents who have or are receiving 
public mental health services. 

 

• General Public Interest Vacancies 
 

There are vacancies for City of Berkeley residents who have expertise who 
represent a broad range of disciplines, professions, and fields of knowledge. 

 
Please note: Residents may have a combination of knowledge and lived experience but 

must apply for membership in one category. 

Applicants can request an application from (details needed): 

• City Clerk’s Office – 2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA – 510-981-6908 

• Commission Secretary, Karen Klatt- (510) 981-7644 or KKlatt@cityofberkeley.info  

 

89

mailto:KKlatt@cityofberkeley.info


90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107


	DRAFT MHC Minutes 012419
	MHC report 1.14.19.final
	Berkeley Mental Health Caseload Statistics November 2018.final
	MH_EQUITY_COMMITTEE_MINUTES_12-5-18 (003)
	Kim N. Email
	MHC report 2.19.19.final.pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	FY 17-18 BMH Homeless Intakes.pdf
	Sheet1

	FY18 cost report.pdf
	MH1900_INFO
	MH1901_Schedule_A
	MH1901_Schedule_B
	MH1901_Schedule_C
	MH1964
	MH1966_MODE15_(1)
	MH1966_MODE45
	MH1966_MODE55
	MH1966_MODE60
	MH1979
	MH1979B
	MH1992

	DRAFT MHC AGE 022819.pdf
	Berkeley/Albany Mental Health Commission Regular Meeting
	Time:  7:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. 1947 Center Street
	Basement, Multi-Purpose Room

	7:00 pm 1.  Roll Call
	Contact person: Karen Klatt, Mental Health Commission Secretary at 981-7644 or kklatt@ci.berkeley.ca.us.
	3282 Adeline St.• Berkeley, CA 94703 • (510) 981-7644 • (510) 596-9299 FAX





